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€ million

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

Construction activities
Percentage change on previous year
Germany
Share in %
International
Share in %

+3

+7

+0,4

+13

+12

2,489

2,431

2,181

2,058

1,800

73

74

71

67

66

926

874

905

1,017

914

27

26

29

33

34

3,415

3,305

3,086

3,075

2,714

Orders received
Percentage change on previous year
Germany
Share in %
International
Share in %

-10

-2

+14

-5

+38

2,306

2,315

2,857

2,462

2,012

74

67

80

79

61

811

1,157

697

648

1,270

26

33

20

21

39

3,117

3,472

3,554

3,110

3,282

Orders on hand
Percentage change on previous year
Germany
Share in %
International
Share in %

-6

+6

+14

+3

+22

2,769

2,938

3,033

2,313

1,861

68

68

75

65

54

1,274

1,361

1,038

1,261

1,607

32

32

25

35

46

4,043

4,299

4,071

3,574

3,468

Employees (31.12.)
Percentage change on previous year
Germany
International

Equity
Balance sheet total

-8

+9

+3

+0,3

+1

7,511

7,448

7,410

7,313

6,690

6,472

7,695

6,460

6,144

6,721

13,983

15,143

13,870

13,457

13,411

524

482

468

388

313

1,908

1,833

1,734

1,621

1,432

EBIT

56

59

108

115

80

Cash flow

97

98

144

129

101

Net income for the year (Group share)

35

32

86

87

64
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Foreword
Ladies and gentlemen,
dear colleagues,
Starting from the highest orders on hand in our company’s history, we have mastered a variety
of highly complex projects by working together on the technical and economic challenges they
posed in the 2015 financial year. Overall, we closed the year with yet another increase in con
struction output, however, earnings before taxes (EBT) as well as orders on hand and orders
received fell short of the previous year’s figures.
The global economy performed very unevenly in the past financial year because of a further fall
in the price of oil, the monetary policies pursued by the Fed and the ECB as well as geopolitical
tensions affecting various regions. By contrast, German economy remained stable in a difficult
environment, continuing its slight upward trend. Nevertheless, German construction industry only
managed a meagre recovery in 2015. The public sector investment plans announced in the media
collapsed in 2015 as a result of planning and tendering capacity still being insufficient. However,
we are optimistic that demand in construction engineering and bridge construction will gradually
pick up as from 2016. In contrast, we are not expecting any positive impetus for commercial
construction.
Züblin again acquired some significant major orders in the 2015 financial year: in Bielefeld, for
example, it is involved in the construction of the “LOOM Bielefeld” shopping centre. Züblin was
tasked with the partial demolition, core removal, and construction of the new section and installation of the technical equipment. In Hamburg, we are constructing the “Alter Wall” shopping
boulevard. The extension of the sewage network in Singapore using pipe jacking technology is an
outstanding project outside Europe. In the Emirate of Qatar, we are constructing a new, exclusive,
three-storey office building in “Energy City Qatar” and, in Egypt, Züblin Spezialtiefbau is involved
in the construction of tunnels under the Suez Canal. Our substantial orders on hand will provide a
solid base for the 2016 financial year.
The “digital construction site”, as it is known, is an issue that will determine the future of the construction industry. Companies throughout the world are currently working hard at the digitalisation
of all the processes involved in the construction project lifecycle, which is known as Building
Information Modelling (BIM). The aim is to optimise the planning, execution and management of
buildings. All a building’s physical and functional characteristics are recorded digitally, combined
and networked. This produces a data model of the building, which in addition to geometric data –
in other words a 3D model of the property – also contains non-geometric details, such as detailed
information on the materials used, costs or schedules.
The news that our majority shareholder STRABAG SE has acquired all the shares in Züblin in their
entirety illustrates our major significance within the STRABAG Group. In line with our corporate
aspiration “TEAMS WORK.”, Züblin and STRABAG have defined joint targets in their collaboration,
which now dates back ten years, and have developed very successfully. Full membership of the
STRABAG Group will further simplify the coordination of our corporate strategies and facilitate our
working together within the Group. Together with our STRABAG colleagues, we shall consistently
pursue the course we have adopted to becoming one of the most successful construction groups
in Europe.
We are particularly grateful to our employees for their great commitment and the team spirit they
demonstrate working as partners. We should like to thank the members of the Supervisory Board,
the employee representatives and our clients for the trust they have shown in working so con
structively with us; we shall continue to play our part in perpetuating these relationships in future.
THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Report of the Supervisory Board

Report of the
Supervisory Board

Axeltorv, Copenhagen (Denmark)
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
In the 2015 financial year, the Supervisory Board performed the tasks incumbent upon it by law,
the Articles of Association and its rules of internal procedure.

Collaboration between the Management Board and the Supervisory Board
The Supervisory Board monitored the Management Board of the company in its management of
business. The Management Board informed the Supervisory Board promptly and comprehensively,
both in writing and verbally, about ongoing business, the status of the company and its subsidi
aries and the most important financial data. In the process, the Management Board especially
examined deviations in the course of business from plans and targets as well as measures to
minimise risk. Key reports by Internal Audit were made available to the Chairman of the Super
visory Board. Furthermore, the Management Board regularly consulted the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, in writing and verbally, with regard to particular occurrences.
The Supervisory Board was involved in all decisions that were of fundamental importance for
Züblin. The Management Board submitted all issues requiring approval for resolution by the
Supervisory Board. Transactions for which approval by the Supervisory Board was required were
examined with the help of documentation from the Management Board and debated extensively in
the meetings of the Supervisory Board. The approval required by law and the Articles of Association was given to the best of our knowledge.

Issues addressed by the Supervisory Board in 2015
The Supervisory Board held four ordinary meetings in the 2015 financial year. In three cases, circular resolutions were passed. As a rule, members of the Management Board participated in meetings of the Supervisory Board.
In the year under review, the Supervisory Board focused on internal organisation, the development
of earnings, investment strategies in the financial sector, construction industry trends in the mar
kets of relevance for Züblin, new segments and the company’s strategic direction. The Management Board explained the company’s quarterly financial statements. In the process, the Manage
ment Board went into the strategic direction, in particular, to further improve the equity ratio of
Ed. Züblin AG. The opportunities and risks of new segments were discussed in depth. The discussions also included the development of the Timber Engineering segment. As part of ongoing
business, the meetings also dealt with major bids and the risks posed by existing construction
projects. The Supervisory Board also dealt with the sale of a precast concrete plant in Hagsfeld
and changes to the allocation of responsibilities. The “Cologne North-South Stadtbahn” project
continued to be a regular topic at meetings of the Supervisory Board in the 2015 financial year.
The Supervisory Board also passed resolutions on the conclusion of a financing agreement between STRABAG SE as borrower and Ed. Züblin AG as lender, which was approved by the Super
visory Board but was never utilised despite being concluded, the participation of Ed. Züblin AG
once more in the premature extension of the STRABAG SE syndicated guarantee facility on
improved terms and other transactions where the approval of the Supervisory Board is required.
As part of its reporting duties, the Management Board also explained the background and consequences of the bankruptcy of Zucotec – Sociedade de Construções, Lda, which the company
filed for in September 2015, to the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board also spent time establishing companies abroad and deciding whether to invest in land and production facilities. The
issue of the development of the A-Lanes A15 Civil project in the Netherlands was also broached
on a regular basis.

Report of the Supervisory Board

The activities of Ed. Züblin AG in the area of Building Information Modelling (BIM/5D) were presented to the Supervisory Board. Finally, having discussed the requirements of the German law on
equal participation by women and men in management roles, the Supervisory Board passed the
requisite resolutions concerning the proportion of women in the Management Board and Super
visory Board.

Committees
The Supervisory Board has established two committees, the Executive Committee and the CoDetermination Committee in accordance with § 27 Para. 3 of the Co-Determination Act (MitbestG).
The Executive Committee met twice in the 2015 financial year. There was no occasion for the CoDetermination Committee to act in the 2015 financial year.

Annual financial statements for 2015
The annual financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG compiled by the Management Board and the
consolidated financial statements drawn up under IFRS and the combined management report for
Ed. Züblin AG and the Group for the 2015 financial year, including the accounting records, have
been audited by the auditors, Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft,
Düsseldorf, – elected by the General Meeting and commissioned by the Supervisory Board – and
have each received an unqualified auditor’s report.
The audit documentation and the Management Board’s proposal on the appropriation of profits,
the corresponding audit reports by the auditors, the Management Board’s report on relations with
affiliated companies pursuant to § 312 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG) for the 2015
financial year (dependent company report) and the audit report by the auditors on the dependent
company report were all submitted in their entirety to the members of the Supervisory Board well
before the balance sheet meeting on 19 April 2016. During this meeting, the Management Board
explained the net assets, financial position and results of operations of the company and the
Group in detail. In particular, the Management Board has established an appropriate internal control and risk management system, which is consistent with the requirements of the company and
which seems capable, according to its design and actual application, of recognizing developments
which jeopardise the continuance of the company in good time. The auditors reported on the
significant findings of their audit in the Supervisory Board meeting on 19 April 2016. The auditors
were also prepared to provide additional information and answer any questions that members
might have.
The questions on the financial statements and audit reports raised by the Supervisory Board were
answered. The Supervisory Board established after final examination that there are no objections
to be raised against the audit reports and that the findings of the audit by the auditors are to be
approved. The Supervisory Board therefore gave its consent to the annual financial statements of
Ed. Züblin AG compiled by the Management Board and the consolidated financial statements for
the 2015 financial year drawn up under IFRS in the meeting of the Supervisory Board on 19 April
2016. The annual financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG are therefore approved in accordance with
§ 172 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG). In its assessment of the position of the company and the Group, the Supervisory Board concurs with that of the Management Board in its
combined management report for Ed. Züblin AG and the Group.
The auditors audited the dependent company report compiled by the Management Board and
issued the following audit opinion:
“On the basis of our audit and assessment performed in accordance with professional standards,
we confirm that
• the factual statements in the report are correct,
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• the performance rendered by the company in connection with the legal transactions set out in
the report is not inappropriately excessive,
• in the case of the actions set out in the report there are no circumstances that give rise to an
assessment that differs significantly from that of the Management Board.”
The Supervisory Board has reviewed the 2015 dependent company report including the findings of
the auditors with regard to its completeness and accuracy and has approved the report. According to the conclusive outcome of the review of the dependent company report and the audit report
prepared by the auditors, there are no objections to the Management Board’s statements at the
end of the dependent company report.
Finally and allowing for financing the planned investment and the equity situation of Ed. Züblin AG,
the Supervisory Board agreed to the Management Board’s proposed appropriation of profits in its
meeting on 19 April 2016.

Changes to the membership of the Supervisory Board and Management Board
Jörg Wellmeyer was appointed as a member of the Management Board until 31 December 2018
with effect from 1 January 2015 at the Supervisory Board meeting on 9 December 2014. There
were no other changes in the Management Board and Supervisory Board in the financial year.
We would like to express our thanks to all the members of the Management Board and all the
company’s employees. Their commitment and their performance in the last financial year are
much appreciated.

Stuttgart, April 2016
THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Dr. Thomas Birtel
Chairman

Combined
Management Report

UPPER WEST, Berlin
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COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT
Basic principles of the Group
GROUP BUSINESS MODEL
The roots of Ed. Züblin AG are to be found in Strasbourg/Alsace, where the company was founded
by the Swiss engineer Eduard Züblin in 1898. Today, Züblin has its headquarters in Stuttgart and,
with approximately 14,000 employees and construction activities generating well over € 3 billion
per year, ranks as one of the leading German construction groups. Züblin is the undisputed No. 1
in German structural engineering and construction engineering. Our company has been completing challenging construction projects successfully for 117 years now and offers bespoke, efficient solutions for construction projects of every type and size. Züblin has always won plaudits
through its capacity for innovation, which is reflected in intelligent engineering, new construction
materials and advanced construction methods. Our range of services encompasses all construction-relevant tasks, from turnkey construction through construction engineering, ground engineering, steel construction, bridge and tunnel construction to public private partnership (PPP) projects.
We offer supplementary services in the areas of fire-resistant and chimney construction, timber
engineering, structural maintenance and environmental technology.

The Züblin Group’s markets
Germany is the core market of Ed. Züblin AG but it also operates in selected foreign markets via
its subsidiaries. The company’s nationwide presence in Germany and Belgium, and increasingly
in Denmark, secures us broad market access and guarantees our clients benefit from the level
of customer service that only regional proximity can provide. For years, our success has not
just been limited to Europe; we have also been operating successfully in Chile, the United Arab
Emirates and Singapore, for instance. In countries where we do not have a physical presence,
we offer selected projects as direct exports. Our clients can therefore rely on our proven quality
standards everywhere.

Environmental protection, sustainability and corporate social responsibility
Our centre of technical expertise is the Central Engineering Division, where we combine our
expertise to support all the Group’s segments – from ground engineering through tunnel construction, structural construction to turnkey construction and construction process management. The
construction industry will also be faced with new challenges resulting from changes in environmental conditions caused by climate change. In response to these challenges, Züblin is focusing
on the development of processes and technologies needed to construct energy-efficient buildings.
To boost our competitiveness, the Central Engineering Division carries out innovative, specialist
and interdisciplinary projects with the operating units and participates in external, national and
international research and development projects. The Central Engineering Division supports the
operating units during the entire construction process, starting in an early acquisition phase via
tendering and implementation planning to site management. The Central Engineering Division also
manages the issues of sustainability, the environment and corporate social responsibility. Here, we
offer holistic energy-efficient solutions for the building’s entire life cycle, which conserve resources
and comply with international standards. We attach great importance to limiting possible adverse
effects on the environment, which may arise from our construction activities, to a minimum and
are constantly looking for new means to do so. These include, for example, integrated planning,
extensive research and development as well as the use of innovative, sustainable products and
construction techniques that consume as few resources as possible. The use of alternative
sources of energy and raising employees’ awareness of these issues complete our company’s
claim to act in an environmentally-responsible manner. We ensure that we use CO2-reduced
methods of construction and working even in the planning phase for (potential) orders. Züblin was

Combined Management Report

9

We constantly refine our innovative technologies and strive to achieve the highest standards for
our clients. Naturally, we do not simply attach great importance to sustainability in our construction projects but also in our own Group buildings. Back in 2014, Züblin was the first and currently
the only company to receive an award from the German Company for Sustainable Construction
(DGNB) for the entire campus at the Stuttgart site. Sustainability, environmental protection and
occupational safety are also mandatory components of our Group principles, the Code of
Conduct.

Integrated quality management system
Ed. Züblin AG and its subsidiaries have also established an integrated quality management system
(IQM). This covers the issues of quality management, occupational safety, health and environ
mental protection, energy management, risk management, compliance and, in particular, quality
assurance in accordance with the requirements for nuclear facilities as well as additional requirements of international, national and industry-related standards.

Züblin teamconcept
With our Züblin teamconcept, we offer an innovative and successful partnering model in building
construction, which aims to optimise construction time and costs in addition to maintaining high
quality standards. This ensures openness and transparency between all those involved in the
project from the point at which planning starts until it is completed. Clear objectives stipulated by
contract, an early breakdown of the costs and regular financial controls provide planning security
and the opportunity to optimise processes. Specialist tools are used to enable us to manage all
critical aspects of a construction project successfully.
We offer our clients a modular concept here, which encompasses all construction-relevant tasks.
The skills required for the project are networked from the beginning meaning that interface losses
can be avoided. A fundamental goal is a constructive working relationship and partnership-based
collaboration with clients and subcontractors and suppliers. The knowledge of highly qualified,
engineering, scientific and economic experts is pooled in special research teams to produce an
overall performance that sets standards as a result of its operating efficiency, first-class quality
and environmental awareness.

Parkend residential facility, Frankfurt/Main
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certified as a CO2-aware company in the Netherlands as long ago as 2011. Last but not least, specific CO2 certificates give us real competitive advantages in certain tender processes.
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Code of Conduct
It is a matter of great importance for Züblin that the conduct of all its employees as well as subcontractors and suppliers is ethically unimpeachable. A Group-wide code of ethics was introduced for this purpose some years ago. This Code of Conduct, as it is known, defines the general
conditions for the conduct of the entire Züblin workforce in their day-to-day work. Following the
introduction of this guideline, both management and employees have been obliged to attach the
greatest importance to complying with legal requirements and internal provisions and to follow
defined basic values. Employees have been familiarised with the code of ethics through e-learning
training sessions.
Certification via EMB Wertemanagement Bau e. V. was also implemented back in February 2014
to provide evidence of the implementation of our code of ethics to clients, authorities, suppliers
and subcontractors. A post-implementation audit of this issue was successfully completed in
February 2015.

Efficient organisational structure
As highly specialised centres of expertise, our central services units support the operating orga
nisational units with services, which include accounting, taxes, finance, law, IT, administration and
development of personnel, insurance, property management, construction machinery management, quality and process management. The core element here is the shared-service organisation
of BRVZ Bau-Rechen- und Verwaltungszentrum GmbH & Co. KG (BRVZ) and BMTI – Baumaschinentechnik International GmbH & Co. KG (BMTI). Thanks to the range of services provided
by our services units, the organisational units can concentrate entirely on their respective core
business. At the same time, the economies of scale achieved by combining these tasks lead to a
permanently low cost structure. More objective monitoring and reporting of operational opportu
nities and risks through the central services units will give management an efficient controlling tool.

TEAMS WORK. – Working together for success
We have been successfully living up to our slogan TEAMS WORK. and implementing it in our dayto-day operations for almost two years now. In the past financial year, our employees worked
together with great commitment to master impressive projects and boosted the company’s
success. Our way of working benefits from the exchange of technical expertise. By working
together in a partnership-based way, both in the Group, across brand, country and organisational
boundaries and with external project participants, we aim to increase our added value and win
over clients more than ever.
TEAMS WORK. describes precisely what is important in the construction industry: people working
smoothly together to produce top-quality work. In future, competition will no longer only be based
on price and quality but will also be decided by how people work together. On the subject of
working together as partners, we have devised nine principles in total, which help our teams to
coalesce: partnership, trust, a hunger for innovation, modesty, commitment, reliability, respect,
solidarity and sustainability. These values guide us in our day-to-day work.
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Elobau logistics hall, Leutkirch

DEVELOPMENT, INNOVATION AND THE ENVIRONMENT
Construction in the digital era
Production-related processes are currently changing fundamentally: the capacity for innovation of
information technologies and the radical fall in the price of computer and storage capacity is
allowing worldwide communication in real time. As a result of the miniaturisation of sensor techno
logy – as a key source for the increase in digitalised data – and the enormous capacity of data
processing intermediate and end devices, information is available at any place and at any time.
This development is allowing interactive methods of working and the high-grade visualisation of
complex processes. Real physical and technical events in the present are linked to virtual pre
sentation. Manufacturing and operating companies and users remain linked during the lifecycles of
all services and technical products. The resultant overwhelming plethora of data is referred to as
Big Data. However, these data do not only include current and future information as well as histo
rical information, which was previously stored in an analogue format, but also completely new
information, which could not be recorded technologically until recently. Powerful algorithms
(analytics, cognitive computing) help with the targeted analysis of quantities of data and can also
recognise deeper connections based on patterns, such as for forecasts. Stationary industries
started looking at these new possibilities years ago, as the discussion about “Industry 4.0” shows.

Significance for Züblin
Networked, digitalised methods of working are symbolic of the change needed in our industry to
be able to fulfil the wishes and requirements of our clients in future too. For Züblin, as part of a
technology group for construction services, this also means that all key business processes, i.e.
planning, execution, production, operation and administration must gradually be adjusted to the
comprehensive, digitally based, innovative methods of processing information. Established solutions from other industries, such as digital measurement, the use of telematics to control construction machinery or navigation-guided logistics, can be adapted for the construction industry.
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We are not unprepared for this trend: for years we have been continuously developing modelbased collaboration involving building information modelling (BIM) in the company and have
already successfully implemented this expertise in some projects for our clients. Specifically, the
term BIM/5D® is used for BIM in the Group – in simplified terms, 5D stands for 3D modelling +
time (4D) + process data (5D). A current example of this being used is the BLOX/Bryghus building
construction project in Copenhagen, Denmark. Here, a large number of the problems identified
in the project planning phase were resolved in the virtual model. There were only a few problems
where we had to wait until the structure was actually being executed or until we were able to
assess the real situation. Material advantages from using BIM/5D® in the planning phase include,
in particular, the new opportunities for continuous communication and the closure of any information gaps. Admittedly, the use of BIM/5D® in planning generates additional costs but these are a
fraction of the costs that can be saved at the latest in the construction phase.
Digital transformation presupposes a general and profound understanding of business processes –
followed by a concerted bringing together and integration of all key project data. In an ideal world,
all relevant data from all construction projects will be recorded. This will require a degree of
standardisation for the documented information, which will simultaneously allow the project information to be systematically evaluated across projects and open up the option of new approaches
to business and sources of income in planning, project management and the operation of construction projects.

Networking – succeeding together
Züblin specifically promotes innovations with the aim of carrying out projects more effectively and
achieving higher standards of quality while improving networking and knowledge transfer between
our construction sites and divisions. As the centre of expertise with more than 700 highly qualified
employees, the Central Engineering Division is in charge of the acquisition, planning and execution
of research and development projects. By networking all departments and trades in the Central
Engineering Division, we can work together on an interdisciplinary basis rapidly and without any
unnecessary bureaucracy. Cross-cutting issues are developed here and information can be
exchanged as necessary. By continually maintaining and developing international innovation
networks, we achieve direct contact with potential business partners as well as new groups of
clients. In particular, we carry out research and development projects in the areas of building
equipment, construction physics, energy, civil engineering and tunnel construction, traffic route
construction and safety. The aim is to implement research and development projects in cooperation with the operating units, so that the construction sites can benefit rapidly from the expertise
gained. These projects are presented in the R&D brochure (Research, Development, Innovation),
which appears annually, among other publications.

PERSONNEL
We work constantly at encouraging and optimising our employees’ technical and personal qualifi
cations. The construction industry is a personnel-intensive industry, where results are heavily
affected by the commitment of the people working in the industry. The personnel factor also
represents a critical variable because of the lack of specialist staff and seasonal shortages. Züblin
responds to these issues through consistent, strategic personnel planning and the continuous
training and development of its employees.
The Group academy is the central platform for training at Züblin. Employees can find training
packages covering engineering, law, business administration, personal development and management specifically developed for this purpose here. Internal and external specialists pass on their
knowledge to participants in a way that precisely matches their requirements. The annual
appraisal interview between line managers and employees also provides the basis for planning individual training measures. The employee’s achievements in the past year are summarised during
this interview and participants jointly work out key responsibilities for the future as well as addi-
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They also have the opportunity for individual immersion in specialist areas or to acquire their first
management experience as a team leader, for instance. As far as progress up the carrier ladder is
concerned, employees can choose between three career paths: the linear path, the project path or
the expert path. In the linear career, the focus is concentrated on general management tasks,
while expert careers are characterised by a substantial level of technical specialisation in a specific
field. Project managers bring many years’ experience in handling projects. They are responsible
for complex construction projects – from acquisition until the guarantees expire.

The Group academy regularly offers modular training programmes, which provide participants with
the qualifications needed for key positions:

The multi-faceted project manager
This is a practical training programme for established and budding project managers in collabora
tion with FH Campus Wien (Vienna’s University of Applied Sciences). The aim is to provide comprehensive technical and personal training in handling medium-sized and major projects for
technical and commercial project managers. During the course’s six modules, participants work
through case studies covering groups of topics with the help of specialist lectures and workshops.
Participants have to sit a written examination on the content of each module, for which they
receive a certificate issued by FH Campus Wien, which can be taken into account in European
educational facilities.

Successful construction management – practical programme for group leaders
The Group academy offers the “Successful construction management” training programme, which
is designed, in particular, to support the personal career paths of established and budding group
leaders. It aims to convey all the technical, management and methodological skills needed for this
position. Internal and external specialists give lectures on the various modules. The interactive
structure guarantees that participants are networked and supports the exchange of knowledge
across the Group.

COMBINED MANAGEMENT REPORT

tional targets and any training that will be needed. All employees also have the opportunity
to submit suggestions for new training packages via the internal knowledge management tool
“connect”. They and their managers also receive recommendations on a choice of seminars
depending on their position.
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Potential management
A system for managing potential systematically has been in place since 2015. The aim of potential
management is to develop sufficient young people with the best possible qualifications from within
the Group to be able to fill key positions internally. Using the career model as a basis, potential
high performers are identified in accordance with uniform Group-wide parameters, promoted
individually and placed in suitable positions. Individual measures such as a development centre,
special training programmes and job rotation, are provided to develop the potential that has been
identified. The targeted identification and support for potential high performers secures their
loyalty to the company and therefore serves long-term to preserve quality, continuity and performance in the Group.

New Office Airport (SkyLoop), Stuttgart

Training
Züblin invests in training its young people. Committed young people, who have completed a
training programme and wish to start a career with us, are welcomed with open arms. To meet our
high expectations in terms of quality in the area of commercial, technical or industrial training, we
need to start encouraging young people at school and enthusing them about construction or
about a training programme in the construction industry at an early stage. The commercial training
centre established specially for this purpose in Bebra has proved its worth in the context of
encouraging our trainees. Liberated from the daily working routine, knowledge can be conveyed
efficiently – both in terms of content and the time taken – here with the help of optimised teaching
methods and materials as an add-on to the daily “on-the-job” training. On the reporting date, 31
December 2015, 189 apprentices were employed in total, of whom 115 were manual employees.

Trainee programme
Our aim is to identify, encourage and develop young talent. In competing for the best employees,
Züblin therefore offers selected holders of Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees from universities and
universities of applied sciences, who still have little professional experience, a practical induction
programme. The trainee programmes aim to give graduates an optimal preparation for the requirements of their future positions in the Group. As at 31 December 2015, there were 13 technical
and 7 commercial trainees working in the Züblin Group.

The assignment plan is individually tailored to each trainee and allows us to respond to their
wishes and offer flexible dates for joining the company. The commercial trainee programme lasts
between 11 and 13 months, while the technical programme varies between 12 and 15 months,
including 3 months spent working abroad. At the beginning of the programme, the trainee plan is
structured, in consultation with the respective mentor, in line with the professional and personal
requirements of the post for which the trainee is being prepared. This experienced mentor will
support the trainee throughout the entire programme. Feedback discussions take place on a
regular basis to review the trainee’s individual performance in detail.
Under supervision from experienced technical and management staff, the trainees work in various
organisational units and are trained in different areas of the business. There are mandatory assign
ments, such as on a construction site, in both the commercial and the technical programme.
Personal and technical competencies are encouraged through targeted training measures. An
individual training plan is developed for each trainee.

Human resources marketing
The Group will only succeed in covering the rapidly expanding need for qualified specialist and
management staff if it has a positive image and is consequently viewed as an attractive employer.
In particular, graduates of vocational colleges and universities form the basis for our junior staff.
This is why our human resources marketing is concentrated on these educational institutions. For
example, we regularly participate in university and recruitment fairs, offer field trips, feature in the
relevant print and online media and offer internships. Our programme for interns was awarded a
seal of approval in Germany by Clevis and Fair Company. We also try to contact our target groups
via selected social networks such as Kununu.

Health and safety at work
We have launched a large number of initiatives to maintain and promote employees’ health and
safety in recent years. As a result, a uniformly high standard is achieved throughout the company.
The issue of occupational safety is also an important factor with acquisitions. We therefore imple
ment the first measures when incorporating new companies, since the rapid introduction of
targeted safety-related care is an important step on the path to comprehensive prevention of
accidents. This helps the newly incorporated companies to get their bearings in the Züblin world
and also facilitates the cross-divisional exchange of information relating to occupational safety.

Allianz Campus, Unterföhring
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The measures on construction sites and in work areas include numerous safety-related training
sessions, which are carried out before and during construction work. Safety-related and occupational medical inspections by accident prevention specialists take place on an ongoing basis,
during which employees are told about occupational safety and are made aware of this issue.
Both management staff and site managers are required to pass on the knowledge they have
acquired, to demand it is implemented and to motivate people to act safely.
Accordingly, a campaign to inspect safety at work and occupational medicine by the Bau-Berufs
genossenschaft (the construction industry’s employer’s liability insurance association) took place
in Germany in 2015. Among other issues, it focused on reviewing ergonomic requirements, the use
of personal protective equipment and hygiene measures.
Across the Group, we analyse past safety-critical events to work out country-specific packages of
measures to reduce accidents and downtime. To intensify all employees’ awareness of safety
at work across the board, the subject is to be taken up via a calendar in Germany, for instance:
questions regarding safety, health and the environment will be dealt with alternately each month.
It is not just the training of our own employees that is a matter of importance for us: we therefore
created rules for safe working practices for subcontractors involved in particularly important trades,
such as scaffolding, in 2015.

E-learning course provides information on safety at work
The office for Integrated Quality Management, Safety and Health Protection has developed and
implemented an e-learning course with the Human Resource Development department entitled
“Basic Guidance on Safety at Work for Employees”. The training course gives people a basic
knowledge of business organisation, workplace design as well as accidents and the organisation
for dealing with emergencies.

Occupational health management
Keeping all employees healthy is one of our central concerns. Thanks to our occupational health
management (OHM), this issue is a factor in all operational decisions and processes.
We have set ourselves the task of promoting employee health systematically, long-term and in a
targeted manner that goes beyond that required by law and have therefore started to implement
the OHM, building on the measures for occupational safety, health protection and the measures
already underway to keep people healthy at work. The measures aim both to improve working
conditions continually and to strengthen personal resources at the workplaces of all employees
and managers.
A series of seminars such as “Fit4Work” have already been held for employees or “Healthy
management leads to success” for managers. These ensure that participants know what is
needed for a healthy working environment or healthy management behaviour. In this context,
the internal platform “connect”, which provides opportunities for the interactive exchange of
information, is used as a central information hub in addition to the Intranet.
In Germany, teams have been established at the first office locations to plan, organise and carry
out schemes and answer questions on site. More site-based teams will start work in 2016. For
2016, the OHM Germany is also planning to create more measures for manual employees at the
construction sites in addition to the schemes at office locations.
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Economic report

Germany
German economy continued its moderate growth course, expanding by 1.7%, in 2015; this was
largely driven by robust domestic consumption. Global economy performed very unevenly. The
regional variation was caused – to cite only a few factors – by a further fall in the oil price, geo
political tensions, the monetary policy pursued by the Fed and the ECB as well as the resultant
weakness in the euro and low interest rates in the Eurozone. In particular, momentum in global
trade was disappointing. Demand from developing countries was weaker than expected. Chinese
economy is still undergoing a process of transformation. It is evolving from a highly exportoriented industrialised country to an economy that is more focused on domestic consumption
and growth rates are consequently slowing. By contrast, economic growth in industrialised
countries remained relatively stable. Here, the fall in the price of petroleum provided additional
positive impetus.

Sports hall, Stadtbergen

In Germany, the inflation rate decreased to 0.3% primarily because of the fall in energy prices.
Construction investment stagnated, having risen by 2.9% in the previous year. The main associa
tion of the German construction industry takes the view that in some key branches of industry not
even the replacement investment required to maintain the fabric of assets is being carried out.
These include mechanical engineering, the chemical industry and the energy sector. Public sector
budgets in Germany continued their process of consolidation in 2015. Structural new debt remained negative. The financing surplus amounted to € 19.4 billion or 0.6% (previous year: 0.3%)
of gross domestic product. The federal government achieved the highest surplus, of € 10.3 billion,
in 2015 (previous year: € 8.6 billion). Consequently, the government closed the second year in
succession with a revenue surplus.
Sales by the German construction industry only picked up slightly in 2015. Insufficient orders on
hand in commercial and public sector construction led to a weak start at the beginning of the
year, unlike 2014, despite good weather conditions. The catching-up process from June led to
total sales in the main construction trade ultimately exceeding the previous year’s figure by 1.4%.
In building construction as a whole, which includes residential construction, commercial building
construction and public sector building construction, sales increased by 1.7%. Above all, the
sustained momentum in residential construction contributed to the positive performance. However,
sales in the key commercial building construction segment fell by 1.9% compared with the
previous year.
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Overall, with growth of 5.2%, orders received in the German construction industry were well up
on the high level of the previous year. In commercial building construction, they were 1.6% down
on the level of the previous year. If building construction as a whole is considered, the increase
amounted to 5.4% thanks to strong residential construction.
Commodity prices and energy costs again fell sharply in 2015. The oil price, in particular, slumped
dramatically in the final months. Prices for steel and reinforcing steel also collapsed. However,
prices for cement scarcely changed.
Employment levels in the main German construction trade remained more or less unchanged on
the previous year. Applications for insolvency were 2.1% down on the previous year’s figure.

Other European markets
The economic situation stabilised with moderate growth rates in virtually all European countries
in 2015. The recovery was supported by the low oil price and the weak euro. However, the crisis
in the Eurozone has not yet been overcome. It is also apparent that the ECB’s monetary measures
are becoming less effective. The Dutch construction market benefited from a sharp upturn in
residential construction there, whereas the Belgian construction industry performed less well than
in the previous year. In Sweden, the local construction industry posted strong growth, while growth
in Denmark was only modest, in line with macroeconomic growth. In Austria, the construction
trades’ sales stagnated.

Markets outside Europe
The relatively weak global economy is reflected, in particular, in the macroeconomic development
of emerging countries, whose economic momentum was very hard hit by falling oil and commodity
prices in some cases.
Growth of around 2% in Chile’s gross domestic product is assumed for 2015. Confidence in the
economy remains weak among consumers and companies. The construction industry in Chile
stagnated in 2015.

BAB 100 motorway, Berlin
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Canada’s economy grew by only about 1% in real terms in 2015. The main cause for the economic malaise was the downturn in the commodities sector. Investment in the mining industry
continued to fall because of lower commodity prices.
In the Emirate of Qatar economic growth has settled at 6–7%. The construction industry benefited
from substantial government investment in infrastructure in 2015. However, here too, there are
signs of definite caution in awarding new construction projects because of the price situation on
the oil market.
Economic growth of about 2% is expected for Singapore in 2015. Growth in the construction
sector, which was previously booming, shrank to 0.7% in the first nine months of 2015. It remained
positive thanks to public sector infrastructure projects.
Egyptian economic output remains on track for growth with an anticipated increase in gross
domestic product by 4%. This is also having an impact on the construction industry as a
significant sector in the Egyptian economy.

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY*
The reporting year 2015 was again unsatisfactory by and large for the Züblin Group. Although we
achieved our performance targets, contrary to our expectations, we had to absorb a fall in consolidated profit before taxes to € 50 million.
In Germany, performance was affected, in particular, by project losses in the Rhine-Main area, a
poor performance by our timber engineering business again and a slight deterioration compared
with the previous year in the creditworthiness of our newly acquired orders. Outside Europe, the
Ruwais project required additional risk provisions meaning that we did not achieve our targets
there either.
Despite these factors affecting the 2015 profits, we believe that Züblin is still very well placed both
in Germany and abroad. In the case of major projects we shall continue to benefit from our broad
technical and organisational expertise and our successful partnering model “Züblin teamconcept”.
Our excellent liquidity gives us a substantial competitive advantage compared with our competi
tors in the SME segment. Backed by substantial orders on hand, we continue to examine the
market and tenders in Germany, in particular, very selectively, as we are under no pressure to
acquire business.
Our subsidiary Züblin A/S, Denmark, became part of a new Scandinavian sub-division, head
quartered in Copenhagen, on 1 July 2015. The organisational restructuring will allow all segments
in Denmark, Sweden and Norway to work together more effectively and be managed more consistently. Only the ground engineering segment will retain its close links to the ground engineering
sub-division in Stuttgart and continue reporting to it.
In 2011 and 2013, Ed. Züblin AG acquired the two companies Stephan Holzbau GmbH and MERK
Timber GmbH. The aim was that investment in production facilities and the interaction of the two
businesses with the engineering expertise of Ed. Züblin AG would open up new opportunities in
timber engineering. Since then, the turnkey construction of complex timber engineering has been
part of our range of services, as have the highly functional timber engineering systems, which we
supply to craftsmen and industry. To boost awareness of the range of services available, the com
pany will operate on the market consistently under the name “Züblin Timber” in future, both at
home and abroad.
* All the figures mentioned below in the combined management report may contain rounding differences.
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The United Arab Emirates’ economy did not expand as rapidly as in previous years. Low oil prices
are reducing government revenues and subduing willingness to invest. Growth also only emanated
from the non-oil sector in 2015. Despite falling oil revenues, work is continuing on current construction projects. The economic growth of the oil-rich Emirate of Abu Dhabi is expected to decline.
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Since 1 April 2015, Ed. Züblin AG has had a stake in SeniVita Social Estate AG, which was established jointly with SeniVita Sozial gGmbH. The new company is to construct additional care home
facilities according to the award-winning “AltenPflege (care of the elderly) 5.0” concept, starting in
Bavaria. SeniVita Sozial gGmbH, for which we have already carried out nine projects successfully,
is one of the largest private operators of facilities providing care for the elderly and disabled as well
as intensive care of the children and young people needing the highest levels of care in Bavaria.
We view this segment as a potentially very successful growth market.
In detail, the Züblin Group and Ed. Züblin AG performed as follows:
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

ORDERS RECEIVED

ORDERS ON HAND

2,464

4,043

1,838

2,643

3,117
1,830

1,944

2,025

3,415

3,472

4,299

€ million
5,000

3,305

20

0
2014
Züblin Group

2015

2014

2015

2014

2015

Ed. Züblin AG

The construction activities of the Züblin Group increased by 3.3% in the 2015 financial year and,
at € 3.4 billion matched our planning figures. Of this figure, 72.9% was accomplished in Germany
and 27.1% in other countries. Within the Group, the increase involved the Turnkey Construction
and Construction Engineering segments.
At Ed. Züblin AG, we significantly exceeded our forecast of construction output of € 1.87 billion
in 2015. Output stood at € 2.0 billion and was consequently by 4.2% up on the previous year’s
figure. Of this figure 99.0% was accomplished in Germany and 1.0% in other countries. Turnkey
Construction posted growth of 4.1%; Construction Engineering also reported increased output,
however, Plants and Specialist Areas trended downwards.
Orders received by the Züblin Group fell by 10.2% compared with the previous year’s figure to
€ 3.1 billion. This was attributable to the Construction Engineering and Plants and Specialist Areas
segments. Despite an increase in Turnkey Construction, the fall could not be entirely offset. Of the
Group’s orders received, € 2.3 billion (74.0%) were attributable to Germany. Essentially, major pro
jects in Germany, such as shopping centres in Bielefeld and Hamburg, the construction of a new
building for the Faculty of Humanities at the University of Bochum or the turnkey construction of
a residential and retail building in Frankfurt am Main, were reflected in this figure. Orders received
abroad fell by 29.9% to € 0.8 billion. The following major projects were acquired there: the extension of the sewage network in Singapore, an office building in Qatar and the diaphragm walls for
tunnels under the Suez Canal.
At Ed. Züblin AG, orders received matched the level of the previous year, at € 1.8 billion, with the
vast majority coming from Germany.
The Züblin Group’s very substantial orders on hand last year decreased by 5.9% to € 4.0 billion in
the past financial year. The share attributable to Germany fell by 5.7%, while the share attributable
to other countries fell by 6.4%. At the beginning of the year, orders on hand came to just under
€ 4.3 billion and therefore significantly exceeded the planned total output for 2015 mathematically.
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Helterbachtal bridge, Melsungen

At Ed. Züblin AG, orders on hand, at € 2.5 billion, were by 6.8% down on the figure for the pre
vi-ous year. Germany reported a fall of € 173 million to € 2.4 billion. In particular, orders on hand
outside Germany decreased by € 6 million to € 28 million and remained at a low level.
EMPLOYEES
Workforce (as at 31.12.)

2015

2014

Change

Manual employees

6,951

8,300

-1,349

Non-manual employees

7,032

6,843

189

13,983

15,143

-1,160

2015

2014

Change

710

765

-55

Non-manual employees

3,770

3,599

171

Ed. Züblin AG

4,480

4,364

116

Züblin Group
Workforce (as at 31.12.)
Manual employees

As at 31 December 2015, the Züblin Group employed 13,983 employees. In essence, the de
crease by 7.7% compared with the previous year was attributable to the execution of major orders
in other countries resulting in the personnel concerned being released and the insolvency of a
Portuguese subsidiary. Both factors virtually only affected manual employees. At Ed. Züblin AG,
the number of employees increased as a result of recruiting new staff for the Central Engineering
Division and the need to employ more people to work on projects in Germany.
Although the forecast for construction output was not achieved in the 2015 financial year, both
Group EBITDA (earnings before depreciation, interest and taxes) of € 118 million (previous year:
€ 125 million) and Group EBIT of € 56 million (previous year: € 59 million) were slightly down on
the previous year’s figures and consequently well down on our forecast. Nevertheless, overall the
year closed with slightly improved earnings after tax of € 35 million (previous year: € 32 million).
In its separate financial statements, Ed. Züblin AG generated earnings from ordinary operating
activities of € 28 million (previous year: € 69 million), which were well below the previous year’s
figure and also below forecast, an output that was slightly above forecast.
In addition to the high-risk projects mentioned elsewhere in this report, this sharp fall was also
attributable to the settlement of highly creditworthy major projects in the previous year. As a result
of the fall in sales revenues of € 403 million and a corresponding reduction in inventories of € 364
million in the reporting year, the application of the “completed contract method” in the financial
statements prepared in accordance with the German Commercial Code led to lower earnings
being reported due to invoicing issues.
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Report from the business segments
Our business activities are divided into the following three core segments:
• Turnkey Construction
• Construction Engineering
• Plants and Specialist Areas.
In the following table, we provide an overview of the key figures from our business segments in
2015. Business activity remains focused on turnkey construction:
ZÜBLIN GROUP
€ million
Turnkey Construction
Construction Engineering
Plants and Specialist Areas

Performance

Orders received

2,395

2,259

Orders on hand
2,410

845

741

1,537

175

117

96

3,415

3,117

4,043

Performance

Orders received

Orders on hand

1,743

1,640

1,725

260

193

737

22

5

2

2,025

1,838

2,464

ED. ZÜBLIN AG
€ million
Turnkey Construction
Construction Engineering
Plants and Specialist Areas

Turnkey Construction
Turnkey Construction embraces all building construction activities in Germany and abroad. Züblin
has specialised in the turnkey construction of challenging and complex structures. In 2015, the
geographical emphasis remained in Germany, Belgium, Denmark and the Netherlands. Our acti
vities in this segment encompass new construction, the expansion and refurbishment of office,
industrial and residential buildings, shopping centres, hotels, car centres, research establishments,
university buildings and other public buildings.
The following significant turnkey construction projects were added to our orders on hand in 2015,
some of which are joint ventures:

Office and administrative buildings as well as hospitals
• Turnkey construction of a new office building and retail space, involving refurbishment of the
core while preserving the listed façade, with five storeys below ground and eight above, in
Hamburg
• Turnkey construction of a new complex comprising three office buildings, an underground
garage and computer centre in compliance with strict energy efficiency requirements in Doha,
Qatar
• Turnkey construction of a new hospital in Knokke-Heist near Zeebrugge, Belgium
• Construction of a new commercial and office building at the Mercedes-Benz Arena in Berlin

Residential facilities
• Turnkey construction of a residential and retail complex comprising 215 rental apartments, 86
owner-occupied apartments and retail space on the former Opel site in Frankfurt

• Planning and construction of a residential complex at Mendelstraße/Bleicheroder Straße in Berlin
• Redevelopment (including new construction) of the former Shell headquarters to form 234 apartments (17 and 6 storeys respectively) and an underground garage at The Hague, Netherlands
• Construction of 25 refugee residences at 10 locations in Stuttgart
• Turnkey construction of 10 houses comprising a total of 91 apartments and an underground
garage in Radolfzell on Lake Constance
• Construction of a new complex containing 134 student apartments, 63 owner-occupied apartments and offices with an underground garage and outside areas in Erlangen
• Construction of a new turnkey home for senior citizens in Ghent, Belgium
• Construction of a new student residence with 266 rooms in Brudermühlstraße, Munich
• Turnkey construction of an office building and retail space including an underground garage
and outside areas at Breslauer Platz, Cologne
• Turnkey construction of the Technical Town Hall in Chemnitz with three underground parking
levels, office and retail units

Shopping, commercial centres and hotels
• Construction of a new shopping centre in Bielefeld
• Extension of the RiemArcaden comprising 10,000 m2 of retail space and a Motel One with
311 rooms on an existing underground garage in Munich
• Construction of a new apartment hotel with 100 rooms and two buildings with 1,000 student
rooms including a shared underground garage in Mainz
• Redevelopment of an existing department store to create an upscale commercial space
offering several rental units for the retail trade and office space as well as refurbishing an
associated underground garage in Stuttgart
• Turnkey construction of an outlet centre in Vancouver, Canada
• Construction of the shell of three buildings for the Dorotheen Quarter (residential, office and
retail space) in Stuttgart

Schools, university and cultural buildings
•
•
•
•

“Tomorrow’s schools”: turnkey construction of several school complexes in Belgium
Construction of a replacement building for the Faculty of Humanities at the University of Bochum
Turnkey construction of an independently funded school for the Saudi embassy in Berlin
Contract to extend a multi-functional building offering combined residential, office and retail
space at the harbour in Copenhagen, Denmark

Industrial buildings
• Partial turnkey construction of a new dispatch centre including logistics space, a high bay
warehouse, shuttle warehouse and office space in Östringen
• Turnkey construction of the second phase of the Weidendamm fire and rescue station in
Hanover including outside areas
• Turnkey construction of a technology and development centre in Wolfsburg-Warmenau
• Turnkey construction of a logistics hall with seven parts in Pfullendorf
• Construction of a new production facility in Kiel
• Turnkey construction of a new fire and rescue station including outside areas in Frechen

Construction Engineering
The Construction Engineering segment is dealt with internationally. In countries, where we do not
have a physical presence, selected construction projects are handled as direct exports.
The spectrum encompasses power stations as well as bridge construction, ground engineering,
such as the construction of excavation pits in complex conditions, through to the high-quality
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construction of bored piles or ground freezing, hydraulic engineering including port or lock con
struction, tunnel construction and other construction engineering.
The following construction projects (some of which are on a joint venture basis) were significant for
this segment in 2015:

Transport infrastructure
• Contract to extend the 16th phase of the BAB 100 motorway from the Neukölln motorway junction to the Treptower Park junction including two railway bridges and a road bridge in Berlin
• Redevelopment of the Wurzburg main railway station including construction of a new pedestrian underpass, stair entrances and platform roofs
• Diaphragm walls for the entrance and exit ramps at the Port Said road tunnel under the Suez
Canal, Egypt

Bridges
• Construction of the new 695 metre long Wehretal bridge involving an integrated ramp structure
between Waldkappel and Ringgau in Hesse

Tunnels
• Construction of a motorway tunnel with two 600 metre tubes on the BAB 44 motorway close
to Eschwege in Hesse
• Foundations, excavation and construction of a railway tunnel in Stockholm, Sweden
• Supplementary contract for the valley crossing and long-distance railway tunnel plus station
concourse in Stuttgart
• Extension of the El Teniente copper mine, Chile
• Preliminary work for the new Pacifico Superior mine, Chile

Steel structures
• Steelwork for a waste incineration plant in Copenhagen, Denmark

Environmental technology
• Design and construction of sewage pipes using pipe jacking with a total length of 5.6 km
in Singapore
• Design and construction of sewage pipes using pipe jacking over a distance of 4.6 km in
Singapore (additional lot)

STEIH waste disposal site, Hunigue (France)
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Plants and Specialist Areas

Züblin Stahlbau GmbH, Hosena, held its own in the face of intensified competition on the steel
construction market thanks to its solid orders on hand. The sharp decline in business in conventional power generation was offset by other market segments, such as automotive plant and plant
construction. The bridge and steel hydraulic construction segment also performed as planned:
all investment was completed by the end of the year. The Sande site is being restructured and
this process should be completed by the end of 2016. Despite the difficult market environment,
Züblin Stahlbau GmbH assumes, on the basis of its selective acceptance of orders, that business
development will remain stable in 2016.
Züblin Umwelttechnik GmbH, Stuttgart, operates in the field of environmental remediation comprising groundwater, soil and vapour clean-up as well as pollutant remediation and site rehabilita
tion. The company operates from six offices in Germany. Through its presence in France, Italy,
Poland, Romania and Switzerland, it ranks as one of the leading companies in Europe in this area.
Züblin Umwelttechnik GmbH sells technical equipment throughout the world to, among others,
various globally active groups in the pharmaceuticals and petrochemicals sectors. Apart from
services such as leasing, servicing and operation of technical equipment for environmental re
mediation, Züblin Umwelttechnik GmbH also provides consultancy services.
The precast concrete plant in Karlsruhe only dealt with its existing orders on hand in the financial
year. The plant’s business operations were sold on 1 January 2016. The purchaser will continue
operating the plant and has taken over the majority of the workforce.
In the construction of furnaces and industrial chimneys, Züblin Chimney and Refractory GmbH,
Cologne, ranks among the leading specialist companies. The range of products and services encompasses the construction of new plants as well as the redevelopment, modernisation, inspection and servicing of existing plants to bring them in line with the best available technology. Inhouse engineering departments with specialist technical expertise develop tailor-made solutions –
using 3D-based construction programs among other things – to meet the individual requirements
of our clients. The company offers services in power station construction, in the construction of
waste incineration plants, in petrochemicals, in the steel and non-ferrous sector as well as in the
chemicals industry and in industrial protection against heat, cold and fire.
The timber engineering activities were more closely linked with building construction and construction engineering in 2015 and a model was devised which will allow the segments to work
together in such a way that costs will be reduced and synergies leveraged. At the same time,
processes – both in sales and in production – were subjected to an intensive review and measures
introduced at the end of the year, which will ensure a marked increase in productivity and leaner
administrative and sales processes. Corresponding personnel measures have been instigated in
management and production management, which will take effect in 2016.
Züblin Gebäudetechnik GmbH, which is headquartered in Erlangen, and its other sites in Munich,
Cologne, Wiesbaden and Dresden supply heat technology, refrigeration, ventilation and airconditioning, sanitary engineering, process measuring and utilities supply services. The company
consolidated and expanded its market presence in 2015.
PARK SERVICE HÜFNER GmbH + Co. KG, Stuttgart, in 2015 managed almost 20,000 parking
spaces in more than 50 parking facilities in Germany, such as stand-alone parking facilities but
also in shopping centres, hospitals, cultural and leisure facilities. The company again consolidated
and expanded its market share further in 2015. The net assets, financial position and results of
operations of PARK SERVICE HÜFNER are stable and orderly.
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In 2015 this business segment comprised steel construction, building services engineering,
the precast concrete plant, plant and chimney construction, environmental technology, timber
engineering, the operation of car parks and services for niche markets.
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Net assets, financial position and profit situation
GROUP
BALANCE SHEET OF THE ZÜBLIN GROUP (IFRS - ABBREVIATED VERSION)
€ million

31.12.2015

31.12.2014

Non-current assets

390

375

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

367

345

Financial assets
Other
Current assets

14

14

9

16

1,518

1,458

Trade receivables

569

521

Cash and cash equivalents

802

784

Other

147

153

Assets

1,908

1,833

Equity

524

482

Non-current liabilities

198

234

Provisions

172

217

Other

26

17

1,186

1,117

Provisions

114

110

Trade payables

788

733

Other

284

274

1,908

1,833

Current liabilities

Liabilities

INCOME STATEMENT OF THE ZÜBLIN GROUP (IFRS - ABBREVIATED VERSION)
€ million

2015

2014

Total operating performance

3,269

3,262

Other operating income

73

29

-2,444

-2,397

Personnel expenses

-650

-655

Other operating expenses

-170

-172

Results from equity participations

42

59

Results from other participations

-2

-1

118

125

Cost of materials and purchased services

Earnings before depreciation, interest and taxes (EBITDA)
Depreciation/amortisation of intangible assets and

-62

-66

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)

property, plant and equipment

56

59

Interest

-6

,

Earnings before taxes (EBT)

50

59

-15

-27

35

32

Taxes on income
Earnings after taxes
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Consolidated profit situation

In the year under review, the total operating performance – consisting of sales revenues, changes
in inventories and capitalised services within the Group – was slightly up on the previous year’s
level at € 3.3 billion.
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES OF THE ZÜBLIN GROUP
According to geographical region
(Total: € 3,415 million)
10%
Countries outside Europe
(€ 357 million)

17%
Other European
countries
(€ 569 million)

According to business segment
(Total: € 3,415 million)
5%
Plants and Specialist Areas
(€ 175 million)

73%
Germany
(€ 2,489 million)

25%
Construction
Engineering
(€ 845 million)
70%
Turnkey Construction
(€ 2,395 million)

In 2014, approximately 74% of construction activities were attributable to Germany. Outside
Europe (excluding Germany), they came to € 304 million (9%), as they did in the previous year,
while in Europe (excluding Germany), they came to € 570 million (17%). As in the previous year
too, the major part of construction activities were accomplished by Turnkey Construction (69%)
and Construction Engineering (25%).
Other operating income increased by € 44 million to € 73 million in the 2015 financial year. Part
of the growth of about € 10 million was largely attributable to income from the deconsolidation of
the Portuguese company Zucotec – Sociedade de Construções, Lda. Other operating income also
contains the positive balance from the allocation to and utilisation of provisions (€ 19 million).
The percentage of expenses for materials and subcontractors in relation to total operating per
formance rose from 73.5% to 74.8%. The personnel expenditure quota stood at 19.9% and
therefore matched the previous year’s figure (20.1%). In absolute figures, personnel expenditure
decreased by about € 5 million to € 650 million. At the same time, expenses for social security
contributions decreased by approximately € 20 million compared with the previous year’s figure,
which was adversely affected by the increased social security provisions at the Portuguese company, in particular.
Other operating expenses decreased by € 2 million to € 170 million.
In the past financial year, the net results from equity participations fell by € 17 million to € 42
million. This was the result of the € 14 million reduction in income and expenses from joint ventures as well as the € 3 million reduction in income and expenses from other companies con
solidated at equity. EBITDA, at € 118 million, was consequently slightly down on the figure for
the previous year (€ 125 million).
Depreciation decreased by € 4 million and came to € 62 million.
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The Züblin Group closed the 2015 financial year with earnings after taxes of € 35 million. Consequently, and only due to a reduction in income tax charges, they slightly exceeded the previous
year’s figure (€ 32 million), which was depressed by out-of-period charges.
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“Interest” fell by around € 6 million compared with the previous year to the current figure of € -6
million. In particular, interest income from financial investments fell by around € 5 million because
of the fall in interest rates.
Interest expenditure amounted to around € 10 million and consequently was just up on the figure
of the previous year. Here, the increased expenditure from an external project financing was offset
by lower interest expenses from pension obligations.
At € 50 million, EBT was down on the figure of the previous year (€ 59 million).
Income taxes came to approximately € 15 million after € 27 million in the previous year. Con
sequently, the income tax ratio normalised compared with the previous year’s figure, which was
affected by extraordinary charges.
In 2015, the earnings after taxes increased by € 3 million to € 35 million.

Consolidated financial position
CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE ZÜBLIN GROUP
€ million

2015

2014

784

695

64

128

-80

-95

Change in cash and cash equivalents from financing activities

33

56

Cash changes in cash and cash equivalents

17

89

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Change in cash and cash equivalents from ongoing operating activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents from investment activities

Changes in consolidated companies/currency differences
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

1

.

802

784

In the year under review, cash inflows from ongoing operating activities stood at € 64 million and
were consequently 50.0% below the level of the previous year. After deducting cash outflows from
investment activity (€ -80 million) and inflows from financing activity (€ 33 million), a net inflow of
liquidity of € 17 million (previous year: € 89 million) remained.
The fall in cash inflows from ongoing operating activities was mainly attributable to lower earnings,
non-cash earnings and the utilisation of non-current provisions. The capital commitment in net
current assets matched the level of the previous year.
The reduction of € 15 million compared with the previous year in the cash outflows from investment activity (€ -80 million) was mainly the result of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The cash inflow from financing activity of € 33 million (previous year: € 56 million) resulted from
raising additional financial liabilities, especially in connection with the project finance for the Jena
university hospital construction project. The credit promised for this project amounts to € 145
million, of which around € 93 million has been drawn.
At € 696 million, net liquidity (balance of cash and cash equivalents/securities and current financial
liabilities) was slightly below the figure of the previous year (€ 712 million).
We could fulfil our financial obligations at any time.
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The Züblin Group’s centralised financial management ensures that the Group has sufficient finan
cial flexibility at all times. A zero-balancing cash pooling system ensures that any liquidity in the
Group is aggregated and managed centrally. All relevant Group companies are included in the
financial planning. The Group’s liquidity is planned on an annual basis. Liquidity planning is sub
jected to a monthly variance analysis.
Ed. Züblin AG has credit facilities in the double-digit millions at its disposal but, in view of the
company’s excellent liquidity position, these constitute fall-back lines if anything and may also be
used by other companies in the STRABAG SE Group. They do not give rise to any liability risks.
The Züblin Group has sufficient guarantee facilities via its participation in a STRABAG SE syndicated guarantee facility and, apart from this, via bilateral credit facilities with banks and credit
insurers. Since its premature extension in January 2016, the syndicated guarantee facility still
offers a total volume of € 2.0 billion and will be available until the beginning of 2021 at least. As
before, this may also be used by other companies in the STRABAG SE Group. This does not
give rise to any additional liability risks.

Consolidated net assets
As at 31 December 2015, the balance sheet total in the Züblin Group increased by € 75 million to
€ 1.9 billion.
The increase in the balance sheet total on the assets side was shaped by an increase in trade
receivables and on the liabilities side by a corresponding increase in trade liabilities.

“Doornroosje” Stationsplein Nijmegen (Netherlands)
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Non-current assets rose by € 15 million to € 390 million. This figure included the items attributable
to fixed assets of € 381 million. While other non-current assets decreased slightly to € 9 million,
the value of fixed assets increased by € 22 million in total, due to investment in land and buildings,
in particular.
Non-current assets of € 390 million (previous year: € 375 million) were balanced by equity of
€ 524 million (previous year: € 482 million) and non-current liabilities of € 198 million (previous
year: € 234 million).
Current assets rose by € 60 million and came to approximately € 1.5 billion. Of this figure, some
€ 802 million (previous year: € 784 million) was attributable to cash and cash equivalents. The
capital commitment in trade receivables and other current assets increased by € 42 million to
€ 716 million (previous year: € 674 million). In relation to the balance sheet total, this constituted
a percentage share of 37.5% (previous year: 36.8%).
Despite the unsatisfactory operating result, the equity ratio in the Züblin Group, at about 27%,
was one percentage point up on the previous year’s figure. Equity (including minority interests) was
shown at € 524 million (previous year: € 482 million) on 31 December 2015.
Non-current liabilities decreased significantly by € 36 million to € 198 million, due, in particular, to
the fall in pension obligations and the reduction in non-current construction-related provisions.
Current liabilities rose sharply by € 69 million to € 1.2 billion, which equated to an increase of 6.2%
on the previous year. The key factor in this growth was the increase in financial liabilities, particularly in connection with the project financing of the Jena university hospital construction project
and the increased figure reported for trade liabilities.

RAMADA Hotel, Hamburg

Combined Management Report

31

Ed. Züblin AG prepares its annual financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the
German Commercial Code (HGB) and the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG). The management report of Ed. Züblin AG is combined with the Group management report. The annual financial
statements of Ed. Züblin AG and its legal components are published in full in the Federal Gazette.
BALANCE SHEET OF ED. ZÜBLIN AG (HGB)
€ million

31.12.2015

31.12.2014

Fixed assets

252

230

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

169

154

Financial assets

83

76

Current assets (incl. pre-paid expenses)

940

948

Inventories, other receivables and other assets

274

299

Cash and cash equivalents and securities

665

649

1,192

1,178

Equity

225

203

Provisions

213

234

Other liabilities

754

741

1,192

1,178

Assets

Liabilities

INCOME STATEMENT OF ED. ZÜBLIN AG (HGB)
€ million

2015

2014

Sales revenues

1,672

2,075

393

29

Change in inventories
Other own work capitalised
Other operating income
Cost of materials
Personnel expenses

.

.

39

31

-1,655

-1,622

-313

-299

Depreciation/amortisation

-25

-26

Other operating expenses

-79

-116

Results from participations

-5

-8

Interest

1

5

28

69

Taxes on income and earnings

-4

-30

Net income for the year

24

39

Earnings before taxes (EBT)

Profit carried forward
Allocation to other retained earnings
Net retained profit

.

.

-12

-20

12

19
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Profit situation
Ed. Züblin AG is primarily involved in building construction and construction engineering through
its own operating activities and via its equity participations. Its main equity participations in Germany are combined under DYWIDAG Bau GmbH and linked with it via a profit and loss transfer
agreement. Ed. Züblin AG participates in the opportunities available on construction markets
worldwide through its foreign companies and foreign plants. In organisational terms, Züblin International GmbH and Züblin Spezialtiefbau GmbH constitute the relevant centres of expertise for the
foreign equity participations.
The profit of Ed. Züblin AG calculated in accordance with the German Commercial Code is largely
shaped by its own operating activities and by the results of its equity participations in subsidiaries.
In particular, it is subject to the invoicing-related fluctuations of the completed contract method,
which is a legal requirement.
Ed. Züblin AG closed the 2015 financial year with net income for the year of € 24 million, which
is clearly below the level of the previous year (€ 39 million). Profit this year was shaped by a substantial inventory build-up, increased warranty expenses and the negative effects from two large
domestic projects in the Rhine-Main area.
Due to invoicing issues, sales revenues were 19.4% down on the, admittedly very high, figure of
the previous year of around € 2.1 billion. Projects that were handed over in the past financial year
included, in particular, construction lots 6, 8, 9 of the Milaneo project, Stuttgart (€ 101 million), the
Aquis Plaza shopping centre, Aachen (€ 100 million) and the Allianz Campus, Munich (€ 94 million).
Taking account of the substantial inventory build-up, total operating performance, calculated in
accordance with the German Commercial Code, fell by € 39 million, or around 1.8%, in 2015.
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES OF ED. ZÜBLIN AG
According to geographical region
(Total: € 2,025 million)
1%
Other European countries
(€ 19 million)

0%
Countries outside Europe
(€ 1 million)

99%
Germany
(€ 2,005 million)

According to business segment
(Total: € 2,025 million)
13%
Construction Engineering
(€ 260 million)

1%
Plants and
Specialist Areas
(€ 22 million)

86%
Turnkey Construction
(€ 1,743 million)

Other operating income increased by € 8 million to € 39 million. In this item, insurance compensation received and claims for damages increased, in particular, while the reversal of provisions rose
to a lesser extent.
The net cost of materials quota increased by € 33 million to € 1.7 billion in the year under review
despite the reduction in total operating performance. While expenses for raw materials,
consumables and supplies and goods purchased decreased by € 34 million to € 244 million,
mainly because of lower prices for materials and merchandise, expenses for services purchased
rose by € 67 million to € 1.4 billion. A consequence, which was the result of the increase in
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Passenger quay, Warnemünde

guarantee expenses in the previous financial year. At around 80.1%, the cost of materials quota in
the year under review was three percentage points up on the figure of the previous year.
Personnel expenses of € 313 million were only slightly up on the figure of the previous year (€ 299
million). The increase in salary costs, caused by staff numbers, was offset by a reduction in wage
expenses, which was attributable, in particular, to the sale of the precast concrete plants. The
personnel expenditure quota rose correspondingly slightly by one percentage point to 15.2%.
Other operating expenses came to € 79 million and were therefore well down on the figure of the
previous year of € 116 million. The crucial factor behind the sharp fall was the utilisation of warranty provisions shown in this item, which was far lower last year. The contra item for the use of
provisions created in the past is included under primary expenses, such as material or personnel
expenses.
The result from equity participations of Ed. Züblin AG was € -5 million and consequently exceeded
the previous year’s figure (€ -8 million). In the year under review, a dividend payment from Züblin
Kft., Hungary, was offset in particular by the losses assumed from MERK Timber GmbH of about
€ 8 million, from Züblin Projektentwicklung GmbH of € 7 million and a loss assumed from Züblin
International GmbH of about € 5 million. “Interest” fell by € 4 million to € 1 million. In addition
to the sharp fall in the level of interest rates, which in turn had an adverse impact on financial in
vestment, the fall was largely based on the increase in interest expense for an external project
financing. Furthermore, the previous year was positively affected by non-recurring effects.
Ed. Züblin AG closed the year with a profit before taxes of € 28 million (previous year: € 69 million).
Income taxes, at only € 4 million, are well down on the figure of the previous year (€ 30 million).
The fall in tax expenditure resulted, among other factors, from the reversal of too substantial tax
provisions created in previous years.
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Bühl tunnel, Siegen

Net assets
As at 31 December 2015, the balance sheet total of Ed. Züblin AG stood at € 1.2 billion and was
therefore practically unchanged on the previous year’s figure.
The company’s fixed assets rose by € 22 million compared with 2014 to € 252 million. This was
caused by the accrual of FDZ Grundstücksverwaltung GmbH & Co. Objekt Stuttgart-Möhringen
KG, Mainz, which resulted in an increase in the item for land and buildings. Some € 10 million
was also capitalised for comprehensive maintenance measures to our administrative building in
Stuttgart. Property, plant and equipment rose because of investment (without taking the accrual
into account), which was offset by depreciation of € 24 million, by € 16 million to € 164 million.
The growth in financial assets was largely attributable to the shares in SeniVita Social Estate AG,
Bayreuth, acquired as part of a capital increase.
Current assets (including prepaid expenses) amounted to € 940 million on the reporting date
(previous year: € 948 million). Of this figure, € 665 million was attributable to cash and cash
equivalents (previous year: € 649 million). Receivables and other assets decreased by some
€ 21 million to € 255 million, at the same time, receivables due from affiliated companies and
participations decreased to € 155 million compared with the previous year (€ 161 million). Stocks
of unfinished buildings before offsetting against advance payments made (€ 1,816 million) rose
sharply compared with 2014 by € 394 million. Receivables due from joint ventures decreased by
€ 11 million compared with the previous year.
On the balance sheet date, 31 December 2015, equity stood at € 225 million (previous year:
€ 203 million). This equated to an equity ratio of 18.9% (previous year: 17.2%). Of the net income
for the year under review of around € 24 million, allocations of around € 12 million were made to
other retained earnings in accordance with § 58 Para. 2 of the German Stock Corporation Law
(AktG).
Provisions decreased marginally by € 21 million to € 213 million. While operational provisions
reduced by about € 12 million to about € 124 million, future pension payments, at € 79 million,
were only minimally below the previous year’s figure of € 80 million. Provisions for taxes were
€ 8 million down on the previous year’s figure (€ 18 million).
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Financial position
€ million
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Change in cash and cash equivalents from ongoing operating activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents from investment activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents from financing activities
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2015

2014

574

596

31

19

-34

-40

-2

-1

569

574

Taking account of project-related external financing and the increase in cash and cash equivalents,
the company’s net liquidity of € 569 million fell slightly compared with the previous year (€ 574
million). We were able to fulfil our financial obligations at any time.
In the year under review, cash inflows from ongoing operating activities amounted to € 31 million
(previous year: € 19 million), while cash outflows from investment activity amounted to € 34 million
(previous year: € 40 million). Financial liabilities were well up on the previous year because of the
project financing mentioned above. As in 2014, no use was made of cash credit lines in the past
year.
Considered as a whole, the economic situation of Ed. Züblin AG and the Group is positive.
The share capital of Ed. Züblin AG amounts to € 20,451,675.25 and is divided into 8,000,000 nopar shares.
The General Meeting of Ed. Züblin AG on 2 July 2015 resolved to pay a dividend of € 0.205 per
no-par share entitled to dividends (= € 1,640,000.00) from the net retained profit of € 19,497,369.61
from the 2014 financial year, to allocate an amount of € 17,857,000.00 to other retained earnings
and to carry the remaining amount of € 369.61 forward to the new account.
Of the net income for the year under review, € 12,032,381.00 was allocated to other retained
earnings in accordance with § 58 Para. 2 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG).

Supplementary report
At the beginning of April, Ed. Züblin AG sold its shares (48.44%) in PARK SERVICE HÜFNER
GmbH + Co. KG. The sale of the shares will lead to a profit contribution in the low double-digit
million euros range in 2016.
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At the end of the financial year, liabilities amounted to € 754 million (previous year: € 741 million)
and again were largely attributable, at € 367 million (previous year: € 335 million), to trade payables
and, at € 195 million (previous year: € 172 million), to liabilities to affiliated companies. In the past
financial year, liabilities to banks rose by € 21 million to € 93 million. The project financing of the
Jena university hospital construction project was the only reason here.
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Forecast report for the 2016 financial year
According to international organisations’ current growth forecasts, the global economy’s performance will be rather modest and vary from region to region once more in 2016. The slowdown
in Chinese growth will spread to other developing companies. Given low commodity prices, the
prospects for commodity-exporting developing countries remain subdued. As a consequence of
increasing divergence in monetary policy, in particular, as a result of the turnaround in interest
rates initiated the United States which will lead to a stronger dollar, developing countries remain
vulnerable to fluctuations in their exchange rates and capital flight because of their substantial
foreign borrowings.
The economic recovery in the Eurozone is likely to pick up slightly this year. Growth in Europe is
currently driven by consumption and is more uniform than it was during the European debt crisis.

Gablingen prison

The federal government expects economic growth of 1.7% for Germany in the current year. Demand is to be driven by consumption and investment in residential construction. In view of the
depreciation in the euro compared with the US dollar, moderate growth in German exports is
expected. Companies are likely to gradually invest more during the year, although corporate
investment in machinery and buildings is only expected to increase slowly.
The prospects for the German construction industry have improved somewhat in 2016. The main
association of the German construction industry is forecasting nominal growth of 3.0% in sales for
the main German construction trades.
We are assuming the following for the sectors of relevance to us: in commercial construction we
expect constant sales and in public sector consumption, nominal growth in sales of 4.0% seems
realistic. The trend in commercial construction and particularly commercial building construction
is naturally closely linked to macroeconomic trends, which could lead to growth picking up if there
is a corresponding economic revival.
Far more substantial investment would be possible in public sector construction because of
record tax income; however, past experience has shown that the policy of consolidating public
sector budgets also has an adverse impact on infrastructure investment as a rule. The programme
of callable funds from the federal government’s special fund of € 3.5 billion (Kommunalinvestitionsförderfonds) for investment by cash-strapped local authorities favours building construction
primarily. The federal government’s investment expenditure will increase in 2016 with the so-called
“investment ramp-up in infrastructure”. The federal government is to increase its investment in
road, rail and waterways by 14% from € 10.6 billion to € 12.1 billion. Demand in construction
engineering and bridge construction could gradually pick up from 2016. No positive impetus is
expected for commercial construction.
In Belgium, the construction industry will stagnate in 2016 according to the current forecast from
Euroconstruct. The long-term trend remains cautiously positive. Construction activity will be
positive in the Netherlands in 2016. While growth in the Danish construction industry will accelerate, construction activity is set to weaken in Sweden from next year. The medium-term trend
in Denmark is stable. However, no upturn is expected in Sweden. Growth in the Austrian construction industry will be rather subdued.
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The prospects for the Chilean economy remain subdued because of the economic downturn in its
most important trading partners, Brazil and China. For 2016, growth of around 1% is forecast for
the Chilean construction industry. The copper price only just covers the costs of extraction. The
future trend in the copper price will be critical for Chilean mining. It is doubtful whether a series of
projects, which should be started by 2020, will be commissioned on time, since many groups are
postponing their investment in view of the uncertain market situation.
Growth of 3% or so is expected in the United Arab Emirates. With persistently low oil prices, some
projects could be reviewed and postponed in 2016. The award of the world fair Expo 2020 to the
Emirate of Dubai has improved the investment climate there temporarily.
Analysts expect economic growth of just under 2% in Canada for 2016. A planned infrastructure
programme by the government could improve the outlook for ground engineering. Should demand
for commodities on the global market not recover, the mining sector is likely to have an adverse
impact on the economy as a whole.
In Qatar, the large number of megaprojects associated with the Football World Cup 2022 will
secure strong medium-term growth for the construction industry. Growth in the economy as a
whole will match the level of previous years (6–7%).
The economic slowdown in China, the collapse in the price of oil and geopolitical risks are also
likely to depress Singapore’s growth in 2016. Private consumption and domestic demand driven
by government infrastructure projects will have a stabilising effect.
With gross domestic product expected to rise by more than 4% in 2016, Egyptian economy is well
placed in any regional or international comparison. The outlook in Egypt remains positive both
in building construction and ground engineering. Infrastructure projects as well as urban and resi
dential construction are leading to the construction industry remaining a rapidly expanding and
stable pillar of Egyptian economy.

Development of the Züblin Group and the company
As the most technologically advanced construction and civil engineering company in Germany,
Züblin strives constantly to expand its market position in Germany – its core region – in Benelux
and the up-and-coming Scandinavian countries. In the process, we focus on organic growth. We
view acquisitions as supplementary and only consider them if they result in strategic options.
We wish to expand our core expertise in turnkey and civil construction, ground engineering and
steel construction further. Against the backdrop of more stringent constructive requirements when
constructing buildings, limited budgets and ever shorter construction periods, we focus on de
veloping and applying innovative technologies and methods around the planning and execution
of our construction projects.
By and large, we consider we are well equipped for the 2016 financial year. Given the good order
situation, which is already reflected in orders received in the first quarter of 2016 and the signs
of positive growth in the construction industry in the new year, we are expecting total operating
performance of around € 3.5 billion for the Züblin Group, which is a slight increase on the previous
year. At the end of 2015, orders on hand totalled some € 4.0 billion, of which 63% will probably be
concluded in 2016. Consequently, a large part of our planned performance in 2016 was acquired
in 2015. For the consolidated financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG, we are forecasting a sharp
rise in the consolidated profit before taxes for the coming 2016 financial year. The improvement
in regional sales in Germany and Benelux, the positive trend in Denmark and the improvement
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The trend in commodity prices will be a key factor for many developing countries in 2016 too.
Although growth in developing countries is comparatively meagre at present, the long-term outlook for these countries is still good. Many countries have a great deal of ground to make up
compared with industrialised countries. Demographic change, increasing urbanisation and
industrialisation will lead to strong demand here in all types of construction in the long-term.
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in earnings in countries outside Europe will provide the basis for this. We also expect an extra
ordinary contribution from the sale of our shares in PARK SERVICE HÜFNER GmbH + Co. KG.
For Ed. Züblin AG, we are forecasting construction output slightly below the level of the previous
year, at € 1.96 billion, for 2016. Of the orders on hand of € 2.5 billion reported on 31 December
2015 (previous year: € 2.6 billion), around € 1.5 billion will be reflected in the performance of the
current financial year. For Ed. Züblin AG’s separate financial statements, we are forecasting a
sharp rise in net income from ordinary operating activities compared with the year under review
for 2016. Starting from a slight improvement in operating earnings, we expect a substantially
higher contribution to earnings from our equity participations, not least thanks to the extraordinary
income from the sale of our shares in PARK SERVICE HÜFNER GmbH + Co. KG
As far as the cash and cash equivalents of Ed. Züblin AG and the Züblin Group are concerned,
we expect liquidity well above the previous year’s figure for the Group (€ 802 million) and for the
company (€ 665 million) at the end of the current financial year. Our aim is still to increase the
equity ratio to cover any risks that may arise and to retain the option of being self-financing.

Navigation School Cenflumarin, Zwijndrecht (Netherlands)

Opportunities and risk report
Ed. Züblin AG is exposed to a variety of risks as part of its operating activity. They are systemati
cally ascertained, assessed and managed in accordance with an adequate risk management
policy. This policy is an integral component of our management system and describes defined
principles and responsibilities for risk management and how to deal with the material categories
of risk. The organisation of and responsibility for risk management is clearly defined in our Group.
The identification, analysis, assessment, management and monitoring of risks and opportunities
is a core management task and the responsible management level is accountable for it in each
case. Our integrated quality management system as well as central support functions and Group
staff functions are incorporated in the risk management and risk monitoring processes with internal audit as a neutral and independent evaluator.
To control the Group, the management of Ed. Züblin AG continues to have access to a management information system (MIS). Essentially, this provides information on the development of the
operating result, the performance of individual areas of the company, about current orders on
hand and orders received.
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The efficiency of our project-related risk management must be increased long-term to reduce
failed projects consistently and permanently. To this end, responsibility for implementing the
project-related risk management system in the divisions was assigned to the commercial directors.
Minimum standards for the procurement and execution of construction projects (common project
standards) have been introduced throughout the Group as a vital foundation for effective projectrelated risk management. The project-related risk management system will also be improved
through a system to identify, assess and pursue opportunities and risks continuously.
Following the selection of the projects to be handled in accordance with criteria such as available
capacity and expertise, the selection is reviewed centrally using acquisition lists. The price for
the projects that are selected is determined after the tendering process. If the contract is worth
more than € 10 million, the responsible members of the Management Board assess the potential
opportunities and risks of projects, such as costing depth and plausibility, contract conditions and
individual risks, such as security of supply and guaranteed prices from individual subcontractors
or clients’ creditworthiness, after a legal appraisal. Business unit and sub-division managers report
reportable transactions to the Management Board, which then examines them in accordance with
the internal rules of procedure and approves them.
The implementation phase is managed by the local construction team. Responsibilities on our
building sites are clearly regulated. The latest findings are regularly incorporated in the project
calculation and, by extension, summarised in the project report. In addition to providing a preview
to the end of construction, this also shows the business unit and sub-division managers the
opportunities and risks that have not yet been included in the project calculation. In the case of
opportunities, such as for supplementary work that has been recognised but not yet approved,
only the costs are taken into account in the project calculation in accordance with traditional,
conservative commercial prudence. Opportunities from supplementary work are only shown in
the project report.
In the project execution phase, the requisite internal transfer of knowledge is to take place via
the structured, digital recording of the key positive and negative causes of results including
insights associated therewith (lessons learned) to deduce key figures and early warning systems
for avoiding failures from them.
As an additional management tool, the project monitor depicts the status and development of
the project through charts and project status flags, meaning that opportunities and risks can be
identified at a glance. Construction progress is also monitored by comparing target and actual
figures to be able to counteract any deviations as early as possible. Parallel to this, the department responsible for centralised controlling provides ongoing commercial and technical support,
involving the Central Engineering Division if required. The Management Board may involve Internal
Audit if necessary. Information on project execution, on procurement and other experiences with
clients, subcontractors and suppliers is also maintained in various databases, which is available
to all sub-divisions for their day-to-day activities. Information is also available from the systematic
defect management and reporting system.

Sector opportunities and risks
Companies in the construction industry work under demanding conditions. The long-term pro
duction of unique objects is subject to specific risks. As a result of external influences and
readjustments by clients, the planning of construction projects is regularly subject to changes,
which lead to production being disrupted, additional costs being incurred and schedules being
delayed. The supplementary work incurred as a result must be enforced by contract. There are
also technical risks, which cannot always be foreseen in full even with the best analysis and risk
assessment.
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Station underpass, Bukit Panjang (Singapore)

As a result of the long production periods, there are mismatches between our contracts with
clients and subcontractors. Consequently, price increases on the procurement side cannot always
be absorbed.
The aim is therefore to conclude binding contracts with subcontractors at an early stage but
also to include them in our optimisation processes. We strive to work as partners here.
With our teamconcept, we have found approaches that allow us to work with clients as partners.
By contributing our expertise in executing projects at an early stage of the project, a win-win
situation is achieved where the client benefits from our potential to optimise the entire project and,
in return, we achieve a significant improvement in production processes.

Legal opportunities and risks
At the beginning of March 2009, an accident occurred in the area of the metro construction site for
the North-South tunnel on the Cologne Stadtbahn. This led to the building housing the historic city
archives of the City of Cologne and major parts of two adjacent buildings collapsing and sliding, to
some extent, into a pit that opened up beside the Waidmarkt cross-over junction on the Stadtbahn.
Two people were buried under the ruins and died before they could be rescued.
Work at the metro construction site is being carried out by a joint venture consisting of Bilfinger SE
(formerly Bilfinger Berger AG), Wayss & Freytag Ingenieurbau AG and our company. Bilfinger SE is
responsible for the technical management of the joint venture, Wayss & Freytag Ingenieurbau AG
for the commercial management. Our company has a 33.3% stake in the joint venture.
The cause of the accident is still not known. The public prosecutor’s office carried out investigations with three of its own experts – initially against persons unknown – on account of manslaughter through culpable negligence and hazardous building practice. Two independent proceedings
are being held at the Cologne District Court, one to investigate the cause of the accident and
one to investigate the damage to the buildings and archives. In December 2013, solely to interrupt

the current period of limitation, the public prosecutor’s office opened investigations against around
100 people who were closely and less closely involved with the project. However, this purely
precautionary measure does not contain any statement regarding the cause of the accident. In
this respect, we still have to wait for the final result of the investigations of the site of the collapse
and the expert report that has been commissioned. A viewing structure is still being constructed
at present for the investigations, completion/use of which was originally expected by mid-2014.
However, as things stand at present, full completion cannot be assumed before mid-2017. The
aim of the viewing structure is to clarify whether the diaphragm wall constructed by the joint venture is defective.
We continue to assume that the company will not incur any significant losses from this project.
Opportunities will result, in particular, from a few ongoing lawsuits and arbitration proceedings,
mainly outside Germany, which have not been assessed so far.

Financial opportunities and risks
The Group’s commercial rules and regulations, from which the Group-internal reporting system
and the recurrent planning process are derived, also contain responsibilities for financial risks,
the majority of which are monitored centrally by the departments responsible for accounting and
controlling. All central departments in the Group, in particular Internal Audit, are also responsible
for scrutinizing all commercial transactions in the Group for possible instances of manipulation
(taking undue advantage, deception, fraud and other breaches of the law). In addition to credit
risk, we include liquidity, interest rate, currency and price risks under financial risks.
The Züblin Group’s cash and cash equivalents are managed by the member of the Management
Board of Ed. Züblin AG responsible for finance in close collaboration with the department respon
sible for finance. With the aim of avoiding risk, liquidity is predominantly invested in banks with
top-quality external ratings, while at the same time avoiding negative interest rates. An upstream
loan was agreed with STRABAG SE again in the 2015 financial year but it was not utilised.
Sufficient liquidity for the Group is still guaranteed on the basis of its year-round positive and
constantly improved liquidity.
The Züblin Group’s supply of guarantees is largely secured by a syndicated guarantee credit,
which was prematurely extended in 2014, with a term of at least five years until mid-2019. However, this new syndicated guarantee credit guaranteed by STRABAG SE with a total volume of
€ 2 billion is also available to other companies in the STRABAG SE Group. The Group still has
various bilateral guarantee credits worth an appreciable amount with banks and credit insurers.
The Züblin Group supplies an appreciable percentage of its total construction services outside
the euro zone via Züblin International GmbH and Züblin Spezialtiefbau GmbH as well as their
respective subsidiaries. A slight transaction risk is incurred at most because sales revenues
and associated costs are settled in the same currency in each case. If need be, where revenues
and costs diverge, hedging transactions are concluded in compliance with the relevant Group
guidelines. In principle, the Group only concludes derivative instruments where there is a concrete
link to the underlying transaction with the aim of making price, interest rate or currency risks more
calculable or hedging them in relation to the specific project.
The recoverability of construction receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis in the operating
units responsible for construction activity from the aspect of country risk (for orders outside the
euro zone) and the actual risk of the respective client defaulting. In the case of private clients,
receivables may be hedged through various instruments such as payment guarantees. In the case
of traditional building construction projects, credit risk is frequently reduced through prepayments
by the clients. Credit risks are taken into account with individual value adjustments.
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Opportunities and risks on the procurement market
We counter the increasing demands concerning time, costs, quality, execution security and the
creditworthiness of subcontractors and suppliers as well as the new challenges resulting from
digitalisation and the resultant changes in purchasing firstly by constantly improving our procurement, information and management system and secondly by digitally networking our purchasing
processes with those of our subcontractors and suppliers. Purchasing operates here as an interface between construction sites and subcontractors and suppliers. The integration of our subcontractors’ and suppliers’ processes in our processes on construction sites and in Purchasing
is achieved through direct, digital networking with manufacturers. Processes are also streamlined
and designed more efficiently through the standardisation and automation of purchasing tools.
Our purchasing staff are prepared for these new challenges across borders and divisions in
practical case studies as part of the well-established training programme, which is continuously
amended in line with changing requirements.
From our perspective, there are no significant supply risks at present. Only the increase in orders
resulting from acquired or upcoming major projects in 2015 and 2016 may encounter better
utilised capacity among subcontractors in individual trades; these risks are successfully reduced
or averted through the effective linking of local and central purchasing knowledge to form a
network.
In 2015, the commodity prices of relevance for the construction market have fallen further compared with the previous year. By agreeing fixed prices with our subcontractors and suppliers,
including commodity-dependent trades such as concrete steel, we can exclude price fluctuations
for specific projects.

Opportunities and risks in the area of occupational safety/quality management
Züblin has an integrated quality management system, which includes occupational safety, environmental protection as well as EMB value management construction (compliance) and is drafted and
certified nationwide in accordance with DIN EN ISO 9001:2008, BS 18001, SCC: 2011 and DIN EN
ISO 14001. Energy management in accordance with DIN ISO 50001 was introduced in individual
areas in 2015. The entire system is process-oriented, encompasses all the company’s transactions
and regulates all operations. It was established as long ago as 1993 and is continuously adjusted
and enhanced. We now largely comply with the requirements of the new standards DIN EN ISO
9001:2015 (stakeholder approach, process approach, risk management, documented information
and leadership) and DIN EN ISO 14001:2015. The reforms will be implemented at Ed. Züblin AG in
2016.
The functionality of the quality management system is scrutinised every year within the company
by TÜV Rheinland. This applies particularly to checking whether operational processes comply
with the standard requirements and the descriptions in the management system documentation.
Account was also taken of the particular features of entrepreneurial activities, the relevant requirements imposed by law and official regulations as well as other higher-level documents. In the
process, all hierarchical levels within the Group were questioned and audited.
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Underground garage at Münsterplatz, Bonn

Human resources opportunities and risks
Our employees make a vital contribution to our success, to the development and growth of the
company and consequently represent our greatest competitive advantage. This opportunity is
offset by the risk of bottlenecks due to fluctuations, a lack of specialised staff and an increasingly
aging workforce as well as adjustment risks resulting from a lack of qualifications.
The system of controls used by Human Resources provides effective support in the identification
of these personnel-induced risks and allows us to initiate measures to avoid them in good time.
The employee tool myProfile, created in 2014 to help support the system of controls used by
Human Resources, was developed further. myProfile allows our staff to record their curriculum
vitae both within the Group and outside it, their professional training and further education as well
as additional qualifications and skills in addition to their personal data. By recording these data,
our employees can be given a forward-looking and appreciative forecast of their individual development opportunities. The professional development measures required by the respective staff
member can be identified and discussed within the framework of appraisals. In 2015, a central
data maintenance option was added to the database system, which allows authorised and trained
employees to record external training and specialist knowledge for the respective organisational
unit. The extended system will ensure that details of individual careers are complete and will allow
more stringent documentation and planning of training across the company in the interests of
developing and retaining our personnel resources in a targeted manner.
The qualification, motivation, experience and long-term loyalty of our employees are key factors
for Züblin’s success. We secure quality results with a target group-oriented range of training and
professional development courses for all levels – from the dual training programme and the trainee
programme to advanced technical and management courses for professionally experienced
employees – and reduce the fluctuation risk. The opportunities for a project or expert career within
the framework of potential management, which offer interesting prospects for specialists as an
alternative to the traditional career path, also increase the sense of loyalty to the company among
our highly qualified employees.
At the same time, we avoid the frequently forecast lack of specialised staff and the personnelinduced risks associated therewith by offering our talented recruits numerous opportunities to
complete a dual training programme or dual studies with us or to contact us during their degree
courses (internships, dissertations, work as a student assistant) and consequently prepare in the
best possible manner for starting work. Accordingly, in 2015 a total of 26 grants were awarded to
students at selected target universities, who are particularly gifted and worthy of encouragement.
We also provide information on the interesting opportunities to train and work at Züblin in career
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guidance sessions in secondary schools and consequently prepare the field for securing recruits.
Overall, we boosted the employer brand through an employer branding offensive.
We counter the risk of losing staff through illness through numerous occupational safety measures
and a large number of measures to promote health, which will increase in significance and scope
as a result of the imminent introduction of a Group-wide corporate health management system.
From today’s viewpoint, there are no personnel risks, which might jeopardise the Group’s
existence.

IT opportunities and risks
Various measures have been implemented because of increasing threats from IT risks. These
include multi-level security and anti-virus concepts, the granting of access rights, access control
systems involving the use of passwords, appropriate data backups and an independent energy
supply. In addition, the Group is working with a specialist services company on efficient defences
against cyber-crime and reviews its security concepts continuously. By issuing guidelines on the
use of information technology as well as repeatedly providing information on the necessity of
being risk-aware when dealing with information and communication media, the company aims to
guarantee the security, availability, performance and compliance of IT systems. Project ideas to
improve and enhance IT-related processes are evaluated and worked up by nominated IT bodies
via a structured business process management system (BPM) and released for implementation
by the BPM steering committee.

Overall picture of the Group’s opportunity and risk situation
To recap, the greatest risks result from the Group’s construction contracts. Ed. Züblin AG’s risk
management system guarantees that entrepreneurial opportunities and risks can be identified in
good time and the Group is in a position to make use of opportunities selectively and to counter
risks actively and effectively.
Our review of the present risk situation showed that there were no risks threatening the continued
existence of the company during the period under review and there were no identifiable risks that
posed a threat to its continued existence in future either.

Other legal disclosures
Report in accordance with § 312 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG)
The report prepared in accordance with § 312 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG) gave
an account of Ed. Züblin AG’s relations with affiliated companies in 2015.
The 2015 report closes with the statement that in the case of every legal transaction in this regard
with Ed. Züblin AG, performance and counterperformance were commensurate with the circumstances known at the time of the legal transaction.
It is further stated that according to the circumstances known at the time the decision was taken,
the company was not prejudiced by the actions taken or omitted.
The report was presented to the auditors together with the 2015 annual financial statements and
the 2015 Group management report and was certified by them.
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Corporate governance statement

Specification of targets for the proportion of women
On 1 May 2015, the “Law on equal participation of women and men in management roles in the
private sector and in public service” came into effect, which established new duties for the
Supervisory Board and Management Board of Ed. Züblin AG in this respect. In accordance with
the law, the company’s Management Board and Supervisory Board have adopted the following
objectives:

Target for the Supervisory Board
The mandates of all members of the Supervisory Board of Ed. Züblin AG extend beyond the maxi
mum deadline that can be chosen of 30 June 2017. Changes to the quota cannot be achieved
unless members resign their mandates voluntarily. Given this situation, the Supervisory Board of
Ed. Züblin AG has decided that the current status of a 16.7 % quota of women in the Supervisory
Board is to be maintained at the deadline of 30 June 2017.

Target for the Management Board
Similarly to the Supervisory Board, all current mandates of the members of the Management
Board of Ed. Züblin AG extend beyond the deadline of 30 June 2017. The Supervisory Board of
Ed. Züblin AG has therefore decided in accordance with its plans and on the basis of the current
contracts of employment of Management Board members that there will be no female members
of the Management Board until 30 June 2017.

Targets for the first and second management level below the Management Board
The Management Board of Ed. Züblin AG has set a 5% quota for women in the first management
level below the Management Board and a 10% quota for the second management level below the
Management Board. The Management Board has set a deadline until 30 June 2017 in relation to
both targets. Both quotas aim to increase the current proportion of women, which stood at 3.57%
(first management level) and 3.48% (second management level) respectively in the corresponding
management levels when the resolution was adopted.

Future-related comments
This annual report contains comments, which relate to the future development of Ed. Züblin AG
and of the Züblin Group and economic and political developments. The comments represent
estimates, which we have reached, after fundamental scrutiny, on the basis of the information
available to us at the time the annual report went to press. However, since they are dependent on
factors, which are outside our influence, actual developments may differ from our forecasts.
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In the wake of its management reporting, the Management Board submitted a corporate governance statement in accordance with § 289a Para. 4 of the German Commercial Code (HGB):
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Consolidated income statement
T€
Sales revenues

Notes
(1)

2015
3,268,162

2014
3,260,968

Change in inventories

-703

-1,303

Own work capitalised

1,868

1,569

Other operating income

(2)

72,805

29,187

Cost of materials and purchased services

(3)

-2,444,320

-2,396,817

Personnel expenses

(4)

-649,738

-654,562

Other operating expenses

(5)

-170,367

-172,025

Results from equity participations

(6)

41,585

59,190

Other results from participations

(7)

-1,727

-1,144

117,565

125,063

-61,638

-65,613

55,927

59,450

Earnings before depreciation, interest and taxes (EBITDA)
Depreciation/amortisation of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

(8)

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)
Interest and other financial income

(9)

3,895

8,692

Interest and other financial expenses

(9)

-9,687

-9,393

Interest

-5,792

-701

Earnings before taxes

50,135

58,749

-15,114

-27,154

35,021

31,595

Taxes on income

(10)

Earnings after taxes
of which earnings attributable to non-controlling shareholders

-77

-537

35,098

32,132

2015
35,021

2014
31,595

Difference from currency translation

32

-173

Difference from currency translation (non-controlling interests)

77

159

of which earnings due to the parent company’s shareholders (consolidated earnings)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
T€
Earnings after taxes

Notes

Amount of items, which are subsequently recycled into the income statement

109

-14
-23,323

Actuarial gains/losses from defined pension commitments and similar obligations

(19)

11,536

Deferred taxes on changes in equity with no impact on income

(10)

-3,441

6,955

8,095

-16,368

43,225

15,213

43,225

15,591

Amount of items, which are not subsequently recycled into the income statement
Overall result
of which earnings attributable to non-controlling shareholders
of which earnings due to the parent company’s shareholders (consolidated earnings)

-378
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Consolidated balance sheet
T€
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Notes

31.12.2015

31.12.2014

Intangible assets

(11)

40,783

40,888

Property, plant and equipment

(11)

326,268

304,309

Shares in equity participations

(12)

6,193

5,706

Other financial assets

(12)

8,071

8,063

Other financial receivables and assets

(15)

3,133

10,801

Deferred tax assets

(13)

5,032

5,178

389,480

374,945

Inventories

(14)

67,732

74,002

Trade receivables

(15)

568,656

521,468

Non-financial assets

(15)

11,151

9,289

Receivables from taxes on income

(15)

15,023

6,890

Other financial receivables and assets

(15)

53,667

62,230

Cash and cash equivalents

(16)

801,819

783,888

1,518,048

1,457,767

1,907,528

1,832,712

31.12.2015

31.12.2014

T€
LIABILITIES
Equity

Notes

Capital stock

(17)

20,452

20,452

Reserves

(17)

502,119

460,534

522,571

480,986

Minority interests

(17)

1,075

1,118

523,646

482,104
216,528

Non-current liabilities
Provisions

(18)

171,717

Deferred tax liabilities

(13)

26,603

17,550

198,320

234,078
110,120

Current liabilities
Provisions

(18)

113,875

Payables

(19)

106,455

71,848

Trade payables

(19)

788,253

732,656

Non-financial liabilities

(19)

61,158

92,551

Payables from taxes on income

(19)

23,309

32,035

Other financial liabilities

(19)

92,512

77,320

1,185,562

1,116,530

1,907,528

1,832,712
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Current assets

50

ED. ZÜBLIN AG Annual Report 2015

Consolidated cash flow statement
T€
Net income for the year

Notes

Deferred taxes

2015
35,021

2014
31,595

5,720

-9,338

4,135

-691

Non-cash income from business combinations
Non-cash income from equity participations
Other non-cash expenses and income as well as results from
first-time consolidation and deconsolidation
Write-downs/write-ups
Changes in non-current provisions

-15,691

29

61,638

66,884

-25,230

8,361

Profit/loss from the sale/disposal of assets

-3,037

3,772

Cash flow from the result

62,556

100,612

Changes in items:
Inventories
Trade receivables
Group receivables and receivables from companies in which participations are held

5,411

-2,439

-54,660

-13,156

4,770

28,373

Other assets

-9,479

808

Trade payables

60,083

-16,234

Group payables and payables to companies in which participations are held
Other liabilities

-5,183

-2,041

-25,265

42,874

Current provisions

25,347

-10,711

Cash flow from operating activities

63,580

128,086

Disbursements for loans and acquisition of financial assets
Acquisition of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Cash inflows from the disposal of assets
Cash flow from investment activities
Payment of lease liabilities
Liabilities to banks

-5,030

-9,040

-88,395

-93,889

13,527

7,949

-79,898

-94,980

-114

-9,957

34,646

66,967

Dividend distributions

-1,640

-820

Cash flow from financing activities

32,892

56,190

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

16,574

89,296

783,888

694,590

Change in cash and cash equivalents arising from changes in the consolidated group

368

-140

Change in cash and cash equivalents arising from currency differences

989

142

801,819

783,888

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

(21)
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Changes in equity with
no impact on income

T€
As at 31.12.2013

Capital
stock

Retained
earnings

Other
reserves

Actuarial
gains/
losses

Foreign
currency
reserves

Group
equity

Shares of
noncontrolling
shareholders

20,452

130,923

336,698

-18,223

-3,634

466,216

1,885

468,101

32,132

-537

31,595

-174

159

Earnings after taxes

32,132

Total
equity

Difference from currency
translation

-174

Change in actuarial gains/losses

-23,323

-23,323

-15
-23,323

Deferred taxes on changes in
6,955
0

Other changes

0

32,132

31,043

Dividend distribution
As at 31.12.2014

20,452

161,966

Earnings after taxes

6,955
-378

15,212

-31,043

0

-389

-389

-820

-820
480,986

1,118

482,104

35,098

-77

35,021

32

77

-34,591

-174

6,955

15,590

336,967

-16,368

-3,808

35,098

-820

Difference from currency
translation

32

Change in actuarial gains/losses

11,536

11,536

109
11,536

Deferred taxes on changes in
equity with no impact on income
Overall result

-3,441
0

Other changes

0

35,098

29,889

Dividend distribution
As at 31.12.2015

20,452

191,855

-3,441
0

-29,889

0

-43

-1,640

-1,640
-26,496

32

-3,441

43,225

340,536

8,095

-3,776

522,571

43,225
-43
-1,640

1,075

523,646

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of changes in intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment
Cost of purchase or manufacture
T€
2015

31.12.
Previous
year

Change in
consolid.
companies

Currency
differences

31.12.
Reporting
year

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

7,130

-82

-43

502

20

0

7,487

49,705

0

7

0

0

0

49,712

56,835

-82

-36

502

20

0

57,199

165,283

2,583

-140

20,563

4,586

7,194

190,897

331,361

170

-848

34,464

22,997

2,430

344,580

129,013

-158

-135

20,001

11,365

15

137,371

Intangible assets
Concessions, industrial property
rights and similar rights and values
Goodwill
of which from capital consolidation

(32,740)

(32,740)

Property, plant and equipment
Land, leasehold rights and
buildings, including buildings on
third-party land
Plant and machinery
Other equipment, operating
and office equipment
Advance payments and
work in progress

5,995

3,398

-138

12,866

0

-9,639

12,482

631,652

5,993

-1,261

87,894

38,948

0

685,330

6,792

0

-4

487

145

0

7,130

52,978

0

-19

0

3,254

0

49,705

0

-23

487

3,399

0

56,835

2014
Intangible assets
Concessions, industrial property
rights and similar rights and values
Goodwill
of which from capital consolidation

(32,740)
59,770

(32,740)

Property, plant and equipment
Land, leasehold rights and
buildings, including buildings on
third-party land
Plant and machinery

170,365

0

156

4,062

9,578

278

165,283

278,037

-2,712

5,551

66,395

18,831

2,921

331,361

125,270

-4,812

855

18,669

11,002

33

129,013

Other equipment, operating
and office equipment
Advance payments and
work in progress

4,891

0

59

4,277

0

-3,232

5,995

578,563

-7,524

6,621

93,403

39,411

0

631,652

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Carrying amounts

31.12.
Previous
year

Change in
consolid.
companies

Currency
differences

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

31.12.
Reporting
year

6,144

-81

-48

593

2

0

6,606

881

986

9,803

0

7

0

0

0

9,810

39,902

39,902

(6,000)

(26,740)

(26,740)

-81

-41

593

2

0

16,416

40,783

40,888

(6,000)
15,947

31.12.
Reporting
year

31.12.
Previous
year

47,617

881

-88

5,180

676

0

52,914

137,983

117,666

204,827

-226

-919

39,121

17,246

0

225,557

119,023

126,534

74,899

-341

-157

16,744

10,554

0

80,591

56,780

54,114

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

12,482

5,995

327,343

314

-1,164

61,045

28,476

0

359,062

326,268

304,309

5,264

0

2

1,023

145

0

6,144

986

1,528

9,822

0

-19

0

0

0

9,803

39,902

43,156

(6,000)

(26,740)

(26,740)

0

-17

1,023

145

0

15,947

40,888

44,684

(6,000)
15,086

43,092

0

138

6,106

1,768

49

47,617

117,666

127,273

176,777

-2,138

3,102

42,961

15,826

-49

204,827

126,534

101,260

72,724

-3,925

679

15,522

10,101

0

74,899

54,114

52,546

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5,995

4,891

292,593

-6,063

3,919

64,589

27,695

0

327,343

304,309

285,970
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Shareholdings pursuant to § 313 Para. 2
of the German Commercial Code (HGB)
Share of
equity %

Other
disclosures

Blees-Kölling-Bau GmbH, Cologne

100

1)

DYWIDAG Bau GmbH, Munich

100

1)

Eberhard Pöhner Unternehmen für Hoch- und Tiefbau GmbH, Bayreuth

100

1)

ECS European Construction Services GmbH, Mörfelden-Walldorf

100

Josef Riepl Unternehmen für Ingenieur- und Hochbau GmbH, Regensburg

100

1)

MERK Timber GmbH, Aichach

100

1)

NE Sander Eisenbau GmbH, Sande

100

1)

NE Sander Immobilien GmbH, Sande

100

1)

REPASS-SANIERUNGSTECHNIK GMBH Korrosionsschutz und Betoninstandsetzung,

100

Fully consolidated affiliated companies
Germany
Ed. Züblin AG, Stuttgart

Munderkingen

1)

SF - Ausbau GmbH, Freiberg

100

1)

Stephan Holzbau GmbH, Gaildorf

100

1)

Torkret GmbH, Stuttgart

100

1)

Wolfer & Goebel Bau GmbH, Stuttgart

100

1)

Xaver Bachner GmbH, Straubing

100

1)

Z-Bau GmbH, Magdeburg

100

1)

Züblin Chimney and Refractory GmbH, Cologne

100

1)

Züblin Gebäudetechnik GmbH, Erlangen

100

1)

Züblin Hoch- und Brückenbau GmbH, Bad Hersfeld

100

1)

Züblin International GmbH, Stuttgart

100

1)

Züblin Projektentwicklung GmbH, Stuttgart

100

1)

Züblin Spezialtiefbau GmbH, Stuttgart

100

1)

Züblin Stahlbau GmbH, Hosena

100

1)

Züblin Umwelttechnik GmbH, Stuttgart

100

1)

Züblin Wasserbau GmbH, Berlin

100

1)

Abroad
N.V. STRABAG Belgium S.A., Antwerp/Belgium

100

Shanghai Changjiang-Züblin Construction & Engineering Co. Ltd., Shanghai/China

75

ZUBLIN ROMANIA S.R.L., Bucharest/Romania

100

Züblin A/S, Trige/Denmark

100

Züblin Construction L.L.C., Abu Dhabi/UAE
Züblin Egypt LLC, Cairo/Egypt

100
(A)

Züblin Ground and Civil Engineering LLC, Dubai/UAE

100
49

Züblin Holding GesmbH, Vienna/Austria

100

Züblin Inc., Saint John/Canada

100

Züblin International GmbH Chile SpA, Santiago/Chile

100

Züblin Kft., Budapest/Hungary

100

Züblin Nederland B.V., Vlaardingen/Netherlands
ZUBLIN PRECAST INDUSTRIES SDN. BHD., Johor/Malaysia

100
(A)

100

Züblin Scandinavia AB, Stockholm/Sweden

100

Züblin Sp. z o.o., Poznan/Poland

100

Züblin Spezialtiefbau Ges.m.b.H., Vienna/Austria

100

2)
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Other
disclosures

Non-consolidated affiliated companies of minor significance
Germany
Arriba GmbH, Stuttgart (formerly 2. Züblin Vorrats GmbH)

(N)

100

DIMMOPLAN Verwaltungs GmbH, Stuttgart

100

EURO SERVICES Catering & Cleaning GmbH, Mörfelden-Walldorf

100

Freo Projektentwicklung Berlin GmbH, Berlin

50

Industrielles Bauen, Betreuungsgesellschaft mit beschränkter Haftung, Stuttgart

100

Kieswerk Diersheim GmbH, Rheinau

60

Projektgesellschaft Willinkspark GmbH, Cologne
Vamos GmbH, Stuttgart (formerly 7. Züblin Vorrats GmbH)

100
(N)

Züblin Services GmbH, Stuttgart

3)

100
100

Abroad
Asesorías de Ingeniería y Construcciones Ltda., Santiago/Chile

100

Baytürk Grup Insaat Ithalat, Ihracat ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi, Istanbul/Turkey

100

Beijing Züblin Equipment Production Co. Ltd., Beijing/China

100

BSS Tunnel- & Montanbau GmbH i.L., Berne/Switzerland

100

Demirtürk Uluslararasi Insaat, Ithalat, Ihracat ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi, Istanbul/Turkey

100

Empresa Constructora, Züblin Peru S.A.C., Lima/Peru

100

EUROTEC ANGOLA, LDA, Luanda/Angola

100

Mister Recrutamento Lda., Lisbon/Portugal

100

POLTEC Sp. z o.o., Wroczlaw/Poland

100
100

Z.P.C. Lda., Lisbon/Portugal

(A)

100

Zublin Saudi Arabia LLC, Riyadh/Saudi Arabia

(A)

100

Züblin AS, Oslo/Norway

100

Züblin Australia Pty Ltd., Perth/Australia

100

Züblin Bulgaria EOOD, Sofia/Bulgaria

100

Züblin Corporation, Wilmington/USA

100

Züblin Engineering Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Shanghai/China

100

Züblin Holding Thailand Co. Ltd., Bangkok/Thailand

49

Züblin Hrvatska d.o.o., Zagreb/Croatia

100

Züblin International Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Kuala Lumpur/Malaysia

100

Züblin Ireland Limited, Dublin/Ireland

100

Züblin Thailand Co. Ltd., Bangkok/Thailand
Zucotec – Sociedade de Construções, Unipessoal, Lda., Amadora/Portugal

2)

100
(R)

100

Equity participations: associated companies and joint ventures
Germany
BMTI – Baumaschinentechnik International GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne

40

BRVZ Bau-Rechen- und Verwaltungszentrum GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne

50

PARK SERVICE HÜFNER GmbH + Co. KG, Stuttgart

48

SeniVita Social Estate AG, Bayreuth

(A)

46

Abroad
STRABAG Qatar W.L.L., Doha/Qatar

49

Züblin International Qatar L.L.C., Doha/Qatar

49

J
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Share of
equity %
Associated companies and joint ventures of minor significance
Germany
BS-Baugeräte-Service GmbH & Co. KG i. I., Augsburg

25

BS-Baugeräte-Service-Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH i. I., Augsburg

25

Büro-Center Ruppmannstraße GmbH i.L., Stuttgart

50

ITC Engineering GmbH & Co. KG, Stuttgart

50

Milet Ditzingen Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH, Heidelberg

49

stahl + verbundbau gesellschaft für industrielles bauen m.b.H., Dreieich

30

Wohnbau Tafelgelände Beteiligungs-GmbH, Munich

25

Wohnbau Tafelgelände GmbH & Co. KG, Munich

25

Abroad
Arena Development N.V., Hasselt/Belgium

50

ASG Invest N.V., Genk/Belgium

25

Betobeja Empreendimentos Imobiliarios, Lda, Lisbon/Portugal

26

Industrial Engineering and Contracting Co. S.A.R.L. i. L., Beirut/Lebanon

50

Ontwikkelingscombinatie Maasmechelen N.V., Antwerp/Belgium

50

Philman Holdings Company, Inc. Metro, Manila/Philippines

20

Signification:
(N) = Name change
(R) = Reclassification
(A) = Addition

Some of the percentages in the shareholdings have been rounded.
There have been no changes compared with the previous year to either the share of equity
or the share of voting rights at the companies.
Other disclosures:
Disclosures regarding equity and net income for the year pursuant to HGB.
1) § 264 Para. 3 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) is invoked for the company.
2) Controlling influence resulting from the contractual structure
3) Lack of controlling influence resulting from the contractual structure
J = Joint venture – at equity

Other
disclosures
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GENERAL REMARKS
Ed. Züblin AG, which is based in Stuttgart, is a German construction group with subsidiaries in Germany and abroad. The
Group’s core business segments are:
• Turnkey Construction
• Construction Engineering
• Plants and Specialist Areas.
In implementation of § 315a of the German Commercial Code (HGB), the consolidated financial statements of Ed. Züblin
AG as at 31.12.2015 have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), including the Interpretations of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee.
Applied are exclusively those IASB Standards and Interpretations accepted by the European Commission by the balance
sheet date and published accordingly in the Official Journal of the European Union. In addition, further disclosure requirements of § 315a of the German Commercial Code (HGB) are met.
STRABAG SE, Villach/Austria, is the parent company of Ed. Züblin AG. The consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in the Commercial Register at the District Court in Klagenfurt/Austria. As the ultimate parent company for Ed. Züblin AG,
STRABAG SE, Villach/Austria, prepares the consolidated financial statements for the largest group of companies.
Ed. Züblin AG is also included in the consolidated financial statements of its direct majority shareholder Ilbau Liegenschaftsverwaltung GmbH, Hoppegarten, which prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with the principles of the German Commercial Code for the smallest group of subsidiaries. These consolidated financial statements are to
be disclosed by submission to the operator of the online Federal Gazette.
In addition to the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income and the balance sheet, a cash flow statement
is compiled in accordance with IAS 7 and a statement of changes in equity is shown (IAS 1).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in € thousands (T €), which can result in rounding differences.
The Management Board of Ed. Züblin AG, Stuttgart, released these consolidated financial statements for publication on
8 April 2016. Approval is planned for the meeting of the Supervisory Board on 19 April 2016.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For better clarity of presentation, various items of the balance sheet and the consolidated income statement have been
combined. These items are reported and explained separately in the Notes. The consolidated income statement is drawn
up in accordance with the total cost method.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The IASB has adopted the following changes to existing IFRSs and adopted a new IFRIC, which have already been
endorsed by the EU Commission and whose application has consequently been mandatory since 1 January 2015:
Applicable to financial years
commencing on or after
the date specified
in accordance with
IASB
EU law
01.01.2014
17.06.2014

IFRIC 21 Levies
Improvement process IFRS 2011–2013

01.07.2014

01.01.2015

First-time application of the IFRIC and IFRS standards listed had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2015.

FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The IASB and IFRIC have adopted the following additional standards and interpretations, whose application was not yet
mandatory in the 2015 financial year or have not yet been endorsed by the EU Commission:

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Applicable to financial years
commencing on or after
the date specified
in accordance with
IASB
EU law
01.01.2016
01.01.2016

Amendments to IAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contribution

01.07.2014

01.02.2015

immaterial

Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

01.01.2016

01.01.2016

immaterial

Improvement process IFRS 2010–2012

01.07.2014

01.02.2015

immaterial

Improvement process IFRS 2012–2014

01.01.2016

01.01.2016

immaterial

01.01.2016

01.01.2016

immaterial

01.01.2016

01.01.2016

none

Impact on the
consolidated
financial
statements
immaterial

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets:
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer
01.01.2016

01.01.2016

none

Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

Plants

01.01.2017

1)

being analysed

Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

01.01.2017

1)

being analysed

IFRS 9 (2009, 2010, 2013) Financial Instruments

01.01.2018

1)

being analysed

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

01.01.2016

2)

none

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

01.01.2018

1)

immaterial

IFRS 16 Leasing

01.01.2019

1)

being analysed

1)

1)

immaterial

01.01.2016

1)

immaterial

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures;
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Application of the following standards and interpretations, in particular, is expected to have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements:
The amendments to IAS 12 make clear that unrealised losses on debt instruments (resulting from depreciation to the fair
value) lead to deferred taxes on temporary differences. They also make clear that all deductible temporary differences

1)

Endorsement procedure is still ongoing.

2)

No transfer into European law.
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together must be assessed to determine whether sufficient taxable profit will be generated in future to make use of these
deferred taxes. They also specify how to determine future taxable income.
IFRS 9 pursues a new approach for the classification and measurement of financial assets and distinguishes between only
two measurement categories (measurement at fair value or at amortised cost), based on the business model of the entity or
on the characteristic features of the contractual cash flows of the respective financial asset. Measurement with respect to
impairment must be effected in accordance with a standard method.
IFRS 15 specifies how and when an IFRS reporter will recognise revenue plus the amount of revenue to be recognised. The
persons preparing the financial statements are also required to provide users of financial statements with more informative
and more relevant disclosures than was previously the case. The standard provides a single, principles-based five-step
model to be applied to all contracts with customers. The rules in IAS 11, IAS 18 and IFRIC 15 are therefore replaced. As a
consequence of the order structure, no material effects on the net assets, financial position and profit situation are expected from the first-time application of IFRS 15, however, application of IFRS 15 will require additional disclosures in the notes.
IFRS 16 replaces the previous standard as well as the associated interpretations on accounting for leases (IAS 17, IFRIC 4,
SIC 15 and SIC 27). The standard regulates the recognition, measurement and reporting of leases as well as the disclosures in the notes to the financial statements of the lessee and the lessor. Under IFRS 16, a lessee must, in principle,
capitalise a right of use and report a lease liability on the liabilities side for all leases.
Premature application of the new standards and interpretations is not planned.

CONSOLIDATION
The financial statements of the companies included in the consolidation, located in Germany and abroad, have been prepared according to standardised accounting and valuation methods. The annual financial statements of the consolidated
companies in Germany and abroad have been correspondingly adapted.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the parent company and companies controlled by
it including structured companies. The following criteria must be met for control:
• The parent company has power over the investee.
• The returns from the participation are subject to fluctuations.
• The amount of the returns from the investee can be affected by the parent company by exercising its power over the
investee.
If there are indications regarding the investees that at least one of the above-mentioned criteria has changed, control must
be reassessed.
Power and consequently control of an investee may also be obtained, irrespective of the majority of voting rights, by other
rights or contractual agreements which give the parent company the opportunity to influence the investee’s activities of
relevance to its returns.
A subsidiary is included in the consolidated financial statements on the date on which the parent company obtains control.
Conversely, the company is deconsolidated when control is lost.
First-time capital consolidation is carried out in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3 using the purchase method.
The purchase cost for the subsidiary equals the sum of the fair values of the assets given, of the equity instruments issued
and the debts assumed. Contingent purchase price components are also included at their fair value on the date of firsttime consolidation. Subsequent deviations from this figure are recognised through profit or loss. Transaction costs are also
recognised through profit or loss immediately.
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Shares of non-controlling shareholders are recognised at their proportionate share of the net assets of the company
acquired (partial goodwill method). The option of recognizing shares of non-controlling shareholders at fair value was not
used.
In a step acquisition, the existing share of the company’s equity is revalued at the fair value applicable at the date of
acquisition. The gain or loss resulting therefrom must be recognised in the income statement.
All the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities, valued at fair value, must be balanced against the acquisition costs,
contingent consideration, existing shares of equity and shares of non-controlling shareholders. Any remaining positive
difference is reported as goodwill. Following further scrutiny, negative differences from the capital consolidation are
immediately recognised through the income statement. Goodwill is subjected to an impairment test at least once a year in
accordance with IAS 36.
Subsidiaries that are not consolidated due to insignificance are stated at cost of purchase or fair value in accordance with
IAS 39 if this can be reliably determined, and are shown under the item for other financial assets.

Transactions with non-controlling shares where control is not lost
Differences from the acquisition or sale of shares in affiliated companies where control is not acquired or lost are
recognised entirely in equity with no effect on income.

Sale of subsidiaries
When control over a subsidiary is lost, any remaining share is revalued at fair value. The difference between this figure and
the existing carrying amounts is recognised as a gain or loss. An associate, a joint agreement or a financial asset is valued
at fair value when recognised for the first time. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
accounted for as if the assets and liabilities of the company in question had been sold directly.

Structured companies
Structured companies are distinguished by the fact that control does not depend on voting rights but primarily on the
contractual corporate objective. The corporate objective is mostly restricted to a narrow field of activities. As a rule these
companies have little equity and shareholder-linked funding.

Associated companies
Companies where the Group exercises a decisive influence constitute associated companies. As a rule, this is the case
with a share of the voting rights of between 20% and 50%. Shares in associated companies are accounted for using the
equity method and reported in the item for equity participations. When reported for the first time, the shares acquired are
initially recognised at cost of purchase. Any differences that arise are treated in line with the principles of full consolidation.
In subsequent years, the carrying amount of the shares will rise or fall in line with the pro rata profit or loss and other comprehensive income generated by the participation. Dividend distributions will reduce the carrying amount of the shares. As
soon as the pro rata losses of the Group match or exceed the share in the associated company, no further losses are to be
recognised unless the Group is liable for the losses of the associated company.
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At each balance sheet date, the Group checks whether there are indications of any impairment in the shares in the associated company. If there are indications, the difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount must be
recorded in the income statement as an impairment charge.
SeniVita Social Estate AG, Bayreuth, was included in the consolidated financial statements for the first time on 1 January of
the reporting year using the equity method. This did not result in any goodwill in the financial year.
Associated companies, which are not recognised at equity for reasons of materiality, are recognised at cost of purchase or
at fair value in accordance with IAS 39, if this figure can be reliably determined. The companies are recognised in the item
for other financial assets.

Joint arrangements
Joint ventures are those where the Group exercises joint control together with a third company. Joint control exists if
determination of commercial and financial policy requires the unanimous consent of all parties involved in the joint control.
At Züblin, jointly controlled companies are accounted for in accordance with the equity method. The typical German construction joint ventures in the form of a company incorporated under the German Civil Code (BGB) are also subsumed
under this item. Results from construction joint ventures are shown pro rata under the item Results from equity participations. Receivables from and payables to joint ventures contain, above all, inpayments, withdrawals and activity allocations as well as the pro rata profits from the contract and are reported under the item Trade receivables or Trade payables.
Jointly controlled companies, which are not recognised at equity for reasons of materiality, are recognised at cost of
purchase or fair value in accordance with IAS 39 if this figure can be reliably determined.
Joint arrangements for implementing construction contracts in other countries are accounted for as a joint venture or a joint
operation depending on the contractual arrangement. If a joint arrangement is classified as a joint operation, the assets and
liabilities as well as the revenues and expenses will be included in the consolidated financial statements and the consolidated income statement proportionally.

Participations, which do not constitute subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates, are recognised at cost or fair value in
accordance with IAS 39, if this figure can be reliably determined and shown under the item for other financial assets.

CONSOLIDATIONS
Within the framework of debt consolidation, trade receivables, loans and other receivables are balanced against the
corresponding liabilities and provisions between subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements.
Revenue and expenses from supplies and services within the Group are eliminated. Interim results from supplies and
services transactions within the Group are cancelled in so far as they are significant.
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Unrealised gains from transactions between Group companies and associated companies are eliminated in line with the
Group’s share in the associated company.
Non-controlling shares in the equity and results of companies controlled by the parent company are presented separately
in the consolidated financial statements.
The necessary deferred income taxes are recognised for consolidations.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES
The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2015 embrace, in addition to Ed. Züblin AG, all significant German and foreign subsidiaries in which Ed. Züblin AG exercises control, directly or indirectly, and the contractual structure
does not exclude a controlling influence. Associates and joint ventures are accounted for in accordance with the equity
method (equity participations); companies of minor significance are excluded from this rule.
Companies that are insignificant, even in their totality, for conveying a picture of the Group’s net assets, financial position
and profit situation corresponding to the actual conditions are not consolidated. The decision on inclusion is based on
quantitative and qualitative considerations.
The companies and equity participations within the scope of the 2015 consolidated financial statements are shown in the
list of shareholdings.
The financial year of all consolidated companies is the calendar year.
In the 2015 financial year, the consolidated group recorded the following change:

As at 31.12.2014

Full
consolidation
40

Equity
method
5

First-time consolidation during the reporting year

2

1

Excluded from consolidation during the reporting year

-1

0

As at 31.12.2015

41

6

16

2

of which companies abroad

Additions to consolidated companies
The following companies were included in the consolidated group for the first time at the present reporting date:
Full consolidation

Share in %

ZUBLIN PRECAST INDUSTRIES SDN. BHD., Johor/Malaysia

100%

Züblin Egypt LLC, Cairo/Egypt

100%

ZUBLIN PRECAST INDUSTRIES SDN. BHD was included in the consolidated group because of the expansion in its
business volume. Züblin Egypt LLC was established on 1 May 2015.
The changes to the consolidated group had no material impact on the presentation of the Group.
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Reductions in consolidated companies
Zucotec – Sociedade de Construções, Unipessoal, Lda., Amadora/Portugal, left the consolidated group following the loss
of control. From the Group’s perspective, the effects of this deconsolidation are immaterial.

Non-controlling shares
Entities outside the Group hold a 25% stake in the fully-consolidated company Shanghai Changjiang-Züblin Construction &
Engineering Co. Ltd., Shanghai/China.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
The items contained in the financial statements of each Group company are valued on the basis of the currency which
equates to the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates (functional currency). The
functional currency of the subsidiaries is the respective national currency for all companies. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared in euros, which is Züblin’s reporting currency.
Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the rate on the date of the transaction. On the
balance-sheet date, monetary items are converted at the rate on this date; non-monetary items are translated at the rate on
the date of the transaction. Translation differences are recognised through profit or loss.
The assets and liabilities of Group companies where the functional currency is not the euro are translated from the respective national currency into euros at the average exchange rate on the balance-sheet date. The income statements of foreign
Group companies where the functional currency is not the euro are, like the earnings for the year, translated at the average
exchange rate during the reporting period. The differences, which result from the application of both rates, are recognised
without any effect on income.

Currency differences recorded directly in equity without effect on income amount to T € -32 (previous year: T € -173) and
are shown in the adjustment item for foreign currency differences. As in the previous year, no amounts were reclassified in
the reporting year from the cumulative foreign currency differences recorded in reserves without affecting income into the
income statement. Currency differences amounting to T € 735 (previous year: T € 2,719) were recognised with effect on
income.
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ACCOUNTING AND VALUATION METHODS
Intangible assets
Acquired intangible assets are recognised at their cost of purchase less impairments and scheduled
depreciation/amortisation, if applicable.
Development costs for any intangible assets produced in-house are capitalised if the Group can demonstrate that completion of the intangible asset is technically feasible, meaning that it will be available for use internally or for sale, and that it
intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it. Evidence must also be provided that the asset will generate a
future economic benefit, resources are available to complete the asset and that the expenses attributable to the asset
during its development can be reliably determined. The cost of production for these assets encompasses all costs directly
attributable to the production process and production-related overheads. Borrowing costs are capitalised for material
qualified assets. Research expenses, which do not fulfil these criteria, are recognised as expenditure in the period in which
they accrue. Costs already recognised as expenditure are not capitalised in a subsequent period.
Intangible assets with a determined useful life are subsequently valued at their cost of purchase or manufacture less cumulative depreciation/amortisation and impairments. There are no intangible assets with a determined useful life in the Group.
The straight-line depreciation/amortisation of intangible assets is based on the following useful lives:
Software

3

Patents, licences

3

Useful life in years
–
5
–

5

Goodwill
Goodwill from a business combination is valued at cost of purchase on first-time recognition. This is the result of the consideration transferred exceeding the identifiable assets and assumed liabilities. Following first-time recognition, goodwill is
valued at cost of purchase less cumulative impairments. It is not subject to scheduled depreciation/amortisation but is
tested at least once a year for impairment in accordance with the rules in IAS 36. The Group carries out the annual test of
goodwill for impairment at the year-end. A test is also carried out if events or circumstances indicate that the value could
be impaired. For the purposes of the impairment test, the goodwill is assigned to one or more of the Group’s cash
generating units, which are supposed to benefit from the synergy effects of the merger. The intrinsic value of goodwill is
determined by comparing the carrying amount of the relevant cash generating unit or units and the recoverable amount.
An impairment charge is recognised in the event of any impairment. A subsequent reinstatement of the original value
on the basis of the reasons for the impairment ceasing to exist is not envisaged for goodwill.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at the cost of purchase or manufacture when recognised for the first time. The
cost model is used for subsequent valuation at Züblin, meaning that they are valued at cost of purchase or manufacture
less cumulative scheduled depreciation/amortisation and impairments. If the reasons for a previously recognised impairment no longer apply, these assets are written up through the income statement, however the write-up may not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been produced if impairments had not been recognised in earlier periods.
Subsequent costs of purchase or manufacture are capitalised if it is likely that a future economic benefit will accrue to the
Group from these and the costs can be reliably determined. Expenses for repairs and servicing, which do not represent
material replacement investment are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.
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Scheduled depreciation/amortisation of limited-life property, plant and equipment is carried out using the straight-line
method in relation to the foreseeable useful life. Where there are indications of impairment with any of the assets and where
the present values of the future net cash flow are below the carrying amount, adjustment is made to the lower fair value in
accordance with IAS 36.
The following useful lives were used as a basis for property, plant and equipment:
Buildings

Useful life in years
25
–
50

Investments in third-party buildings

5

–

20

Machinery

3

–

21

Office equipment

3

–

23

Vehicles

5

–

12

Lease agreements
Finance leases
Lease agreements where Züblin is the lessee and where Züblin bears all material opportunities and risks associated with
the object in accordance with IAS 17 are capitalised. They are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the asset and
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Depreciation/amortisation takes place on a scheduled basis over the
economic useful life of the asset or the term of the lease agreement, if this is shorter. The depreciation method used for
comparable acquired assets or assets produced in house is used here.
The payment obligations arising from future lease instalments are recognised as a liability. The present value of minimum
lease payments must be recognised here. In subsequent years, the lease instalments are divided into an interest and
principal component, meaning that the lease liability carries a constant interest rate. The interest component is recognised
through the income statement.

Both expenses and income from operating lease agreements are recognised in the income statement on a straight line
basis over the term of the relevant agreements.

Public sector grants
Public sector subsidies and investment grants are deducted from the respective asset on the assets side and taken into
consideration on a scheduled basis in line with its useful life. These are recognised at the time at which it can be assumed
with great certainty that the grant will be provided and the Group will fulfil the necessary conditions to receive the grant.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs, which can be directly assigned to the acquisition or manufacture of a qualified asset, are capitalised as
part of the cost of purchase or manufacture. Those assets, for which a considerable period is required to get them ready
for their intended use or sale, count as qualified assets. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period
in which they accrue.
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Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets, which are subject to scheduled depreciation/amortisation, are tested for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may no longer be recoverable. Assets, which have an undetermined useful life,
such as goodwill or intangible assets that are not yet ready for use, are tested annually for impairment, since assets of this
kind are not subject to any scheduled depreciation/amortisation.
The recoverable amount is determined to establish the impairment required. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
fair value of the asset less costs to sell and its value in use. If a recoverable amount cannot be determined for an individual
asset, the recoverable amount for the smallest identifiable group of assets (cash generating unit – CGU), to which the asset
in question can be assigned, is determined.
Since, as a rule, there are no market prices for individual units, the present value of net cash inflows is used to determine
the fair value less costs to sell. The forecast of cash flows is based on Züblin’s current planning, which has a planning
horizon of at least four years. In justified individual cases, the detailed planning period is extended, if this will improve the
presentation of future cash flows. The last detailed planning year provides the basis for calculating perpetuity, if usability of
the cash generating unit is not limited to a shorter period because of legal conditions.
In determining the fair value less costs to sell, the cash generating unit is valued from the perspective of an independent
market participant, whereas the calculation of an asset’s value in use depends on cash flows based on its use to date.
Individual growth rates derived from market information based on long-term business expectations are determined for net
cash inflows beyond the detailed planning period.
Net cash inflows are discounted at cost of capital rates. Here, account is taken of the different return and risk profiles of the
various areas in which Züblin’s activities are focused. The growth rate and cost of capital rate parameters for the impairment tests can be found in the following table.
%
Growth rate
Cost of capital rate (after taxes)
Cost of capital rate (before taxes)

2015
0.5

2014
0.5

6.1–6.6

6.8–7.3

8.69–9.41

9.8–10.5

The management has determined the budgeted gross margin on the basis of past developments and expectations regarding future market development.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is lower than its carrying amount, the value of the asset is immediately adjusted
through the income statement. In the case of value adjustments in connection with cash generating units, which contain
goodwill, existing goodwill is reduced to start with. If the value adjustment required exceeds the carrying amount of the
goodwill, the difference is usually divided proportionately among the cash generating unit’s remaining non-current assets.
With the exception of goodwill, those non-monetary assets for which impairment has been recognised in the past are
checked at each balance sheet date to determine whether the original value must be reinstated.

Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet if Züblin has a contractual right to receive cash and cash
equivalents or other financial assets from another party. In principle, market purchases and sales of financial assets are
accounted for on the settlement date.
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Financial assets are recognised for the first time at fair value plus transaction costs. Transaction costs, which are incurred
on acquisition of financial assets valued at fair value through profit or loss, are immediately recognised as expense. Noninterest bearing or low interest bearing receivables are recognised at the present value of expected future cash flows on
first-time recognition.
They are subsequently valued in accordance with the allocation of the financial assets to the following categories specified
in IAS 39, for which different valuation rules apply in each case. Allocation takes place when they are recognised for the
first time:
a) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, which are not listed on an
active market. They rank among current assets unless their maturity date is more than twelve months after the balance
sheet date, in which case they are reported as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are accounted for at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.
Trade receivables and other receivables are valued at cost of purchase less value adjustments for individual identifiable
risks. To take account of general credit risks in relation to customer receivables, value adjustments graded according to
risk groups are applied. Actual defaults lead to the receivables in question being derecognised.
b) Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets, which were assigned either to this category or to none
of the other categories shown. Changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as available for sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income. If assets of this category are sold or subject to impairment, the cumulative changes in the fair
value previously recognised in equity must be recognised through profit or loss in the income statement.

At each closing date and if there are indications of impairment, the carrying amounts of financial assets, which are not
valued at fair value through profit or loss, must be tested for impairment. An impairment charge results from comparing the
carrying amount and the fair value. If there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment charge must be recognised
through profit or loss in other operating income or in results from participations. Impairments must be reversed if objective
facts emerge after the balance sheet date, which argue in favour of a reinstatement of the original value. The asset may
only be written up to the amount of amortised cost of purchase, which would have resulted if the impairment had not been
recognised.
Impairments are recognised in the Group, if the debtor company has considerable financial difficulties, it is highly likely that
insolvency proceedings will be initiated against it, if the technological, economic and legal environment as well as the
market environment of the issuer has changed significantly or the fair value of a financial instrument falls below the
amortised cost permanently.

Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets are derecognised if the contractual rights to payments from the financial assets no longer exist or the
financial assets are transferred with all material risks and opportunities.
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Actual and deferred taxes on income
Receivables and liabilities from taxes on income mainly contain claims and obligations from domestic and foreign taxes on
income. These comprise both the current year and any claims and obligations from previous years. The receivables and
liabilities are calculated on the basis of the tax rules in the respective countries.
Deferred taxes are determined using the balance sheet liability method under IAS 12 for all temporary differences between
the valuation of the balance sheet items in the IRFS consolidated financial statements and the respective tax base applicable to the individual companies. Furthermore, the probably realizable tax benefits arising from existing losses carried
forward is included in the determination. Differences resulting from goodwill that are not tax-deductible represent exceptions to this comprehensive deferment of taxes.
Deferred tax assets are only shown if it is probable that the relevant tax benefit is realizable. The measurement of the tax
deferment is based on the income tax rate applicable in the respective country at the time of the expected reversal of the
difference in value.
Deferred tax liabilities which arise from temporary differences in connection with participations in subsidiaries and associated companies, are recognised unless the date on which the temporary differences will be reversed can be determined
in the Group and it is likely that the temporary differences will not be reversed in a foreseeable period because of this
influence.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of the cost of production or purchase or their net realizable value.
The cost of production includes all direct costs as well as a reasonable proportion of the indirect costs caused during production. Sales costs and general administration costs are not included in the production costs. Interest on borrowing in
connection with the production of key inventories, which are to be classified as qualifying assets is capitalised.

Construction contracts
Earnings from construction contracts are realised in accordance with the percentage of completion method specified in
IAS 11. Work accomplished by the balance sheet date is used to determine the degree of completion.
If the earnings from a construction contract can be reliably determined and it is likely that the contract will be profitable,
revenues from the contract are recognised over the duration of the contract in line with progress on the work. If it is likely
that the total contract costs will exceed the total contract revenues, the expected loss is immediately recognised as expenditure in its entirety. It is shown as an impairment of receivables from construction contracts and, in as much as the
anticipated loss exceeds receivables from construction contracts from the specific project, as a provision.
If the future earnings cannot be reliably established because of uncertainties concerning future construction progress, the
construction contract is recognised at the job order costs involved.
Where the measured performance that has been rendered within the framework of a construction contract exceeds the
corresponding advance payments received, it is carried as assets under “receivables from construction contracts”. In the
opposite case, it is entered separately under liabilities.
Profit realisation in the case of construction contracts carried out in joint venture is reported according to the work accomplished by the balance sheet date using the percentage of completion method. Threatened losses from work in progress
are taken into account by corresponding adjustments for impairment. Receivables from and payables to joint ventures
include, above all, inpayments, withdrawals and activity allocations and the pro rata profit from the contract.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise all near-liquidity assets, which at the time of acquisition or investment have a residual
term of less than three months. Cash and cash equivalents are valued at net cost.

Provisions
There are defined benefit plans in the Group for which provisions must be created. With defined benefit plans, the company has an obligation to fulfil commitments made to present and former employees. There are no defined contribution
plans in the form of financing through support funds outside the Group.

Provisions for pensions
Provisions for pensions are created for obligations arising from future entitlements of present employees and ongoing payments to present and former employees and their surviving dependants. In the Group, pension commitments are based on
individual contracts or company agreements. The obligations are based on a large number of different pension arrangements. The large number of different pension plans is the result of companies having been acquired by the Group in the
past. New agreements are not concluded in the Group.
As a rule, the commitments provide for the granting of monthly retirement, invalidity and surviving dependants’ pensions.
Some commitments also provide for payment in the form of a capital sum.
The pension plans are structured in different forms. The pension plan structure ranges from fixed amount systems (e.g.
amount per service year) through dynamic systems (e.g. % per service year) to specific benefits (e.g. fixed commitment).
Likewise there are pension plans which offer surviving dependants’ pensions and those that do not.

The Group’s obligations from defined benefit pension plans are determined separately for each plan in accordance with
actuarial principles using the projected unit credit method. This method, measuring the present value of the pension
expectancy, serves to determine the discounted pension entitlement acquired up to the balance sheet date. The existing
plan assets are deducted from the gross obligation at their fair value. This results in the net debt to be recognised or the
net asset to be recognised.
The determination of the net debt on the closing date is based on an actuarial opinion from a qualified actuarial expert.
The discount rate for provisions for pensions is established on the basis of yields, which are achieved for top rated, fixed
interest industrial bonds with comparable maturities on the market.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in equity without effect on income. The service cost is shown under personnel
expenses, while the interest portion for the transfer to provisions is under financial results.
If the present value of a defined benefit obligation changes as a result of changes to the plan, the resulting effects will be
recognised through profit or loss as past service cost in the year the plan changes. Results stemming from compensation
are also recognised immediately in the income statement.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Valuation of the provisions for pensions

70

ED. ZÜBLIN AG Annual Report 2015

The company is exposed to various risks in connection with defined benefit pension plans. With regard to the risks, please
refer to the sensitivity analysis in the relevant explanations under [18] in the notes.

Other provisions
The other provisions take account of all recognizable risks and contingent obligations. They are recognised, on the basis of
commercial judgment, to the amount required to cover the Group’s future payment obligations. In each case, the amount
entered is the one that is most probable after careful examination of the facts.
Non-current provisions are, unless they are of secondary importance, reported at the discounted settlement value at the
balance sheet date. The settlement value also includes cost increases to be taken into account on the balance sheet date.

Non-financial liabilities
The non-financial liabilities shown under other liabilities are reported at repayment value. Overpayments from construction
contracts are classified as non-financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities
The financial liabilities consist of primary liabilities.
Primary liabilities are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet when Züblin has a contractual duty to transfer cash and
cash equivalents to another party. An original liability is recognised at fair value when it is recognised for the first time. Any
premiums, discounts or other differences between the amount received and the amount due for repayment are spread over
the term of the financing using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual basis in interest cost.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the contractual obligations are settled, cancelled or have expired.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are possible or existing obligations where resource withdrawal is not likely. They are not reported in
the balance sheet – unless they must be recognised as a result of acquisitions in accordance with IFRS 3. The figure for
obligations stated under contingent liabilities corresponds to the extent of the liability existing on the balance sheet date.

REVENUE REALISATION
Sales revenues comprise the fair value of the consideration received or to be received for the sale of goods and services as
part of normal operating activities.
Sales revenues from construction contracts are realised on an ongoing basis using the percentage of completion method.
The measure for the degree of completion is the work accomplished by the balance sheet date.
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Sales revenues from the sale of the Group’s own projects, supplies and services to joint ventures and from other services
are realised when the power of disposal and the opportunities and risks associated therewith are transferred or when the
service is supplied.
Supplemental orders associated with construction orders are services, which cannot be settled on the basis of existing
contractual agreements but for settlement or acceptance of which an agreement with the client still has to be produced.
Stringent rules apply to the valuation of these supplemental orders. Essentially, the valuation is based on the status of
negotiations with the client. While costs are recognised immediately in the income statement, revenues from supplemental
orders are, in principle, not realised until written acknowledgement has been received from the client or on payment of the
supplemental orders, if payment is received before the written acknowledgement.
Other earnings, such as rental income or the passing on of expenses are recognised on the basis of the amount accrued in
line with the respective agreements.
Dividends and shares of profits from participations are recognised when the legal right to payments has accrued.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate once the income has accrued.

ESTIMATES
Estimates and assumptions relating to the amount and balance sheet presentation of the assets and liabilities, income and
expenses as well as to the disclosure of contingent liabilities are necessary for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements according to IFRS.
The estimates and assumptions, which pose a significant risk in the form of a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

In compliance with the accounting policies presented, the Group checks whether goodwill is impaired annually. The recoverable amount of cash generating units (CGU) was determined on the basis of calculations of their value in use. These
calculations must be based on assumptions about expected future business development and achievable margins. In
relation to expected future business development, the situation at the time of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is taken into account and a realistic assessment of the future development of the regional and branch-specific
environment is made. Within this general framework, changes may occur that differ from the assumptions and are beyond
the control of the Management Board. As a result, the actual amounts may not correspond to the values estimated.
An annual reduction in the free cash flow used for calculating the value in use of 5% would not lead to an impairment if all
other assumptions remain unchanged or if there was an isolated increase in the cost of capital rate of one percentage point.
Taken together, the two effects mentioned would not trigger a need for impairment either.
b) Realisation of revenues from construction contracts
Revenues from construction contracts are accounted for using the percentage of completion method. Here, the Group
estimates the risk structure, the percentage of the entire contract that has been accomplished up to the balance sheet date
and the costs of the contract still to be incurred. If the costs of the contract exceed the total contract revenues, the expected loss is recognised as expenditure. Particularly with technically complex and demanding projects, there is a risk that
the estimate of the total costs may differ considerably from the costs actually incurred.
c) Taxes on income
Züblin has to calculate the expected actual tax on income for each taxpayer and the temporary differences resulting from
differences in the treatment of certain balance sheet items between the IFRS consolidated balance sheet and the balance
sheet produced for tax purposes must be assessed. If there are temporary differences, these differences lead in principle
to deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities being recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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The management must make judgements in the calculation of actual and deferred taxes. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is likely they can be used. Use of deferred tax assets depends on the possibility of achieving
sufficient taxable income, in the context of the respective type of tax and tax jurisdiction, whereby legal restrictions
regarding the maximum period in which tax losses can be carried forward may have to be taken into account. Various
factors must be consulted in assessing how likely it is that deferred tax assets can be used, such as the profit situation in
the past, operational planning, the periods in which tax losses can be carried forward and tax planning strategy. If actual
results deviate from these estimates or these estimates have to be adjusted in future periods, this could have an adverse
impact on the financial position and profit situation. If there is a change to the assessment of the value of deferred tax
assets, the deferred tax assets recognised must be written down – in line with their original creation – through profit or loss
or without any effect on income or impaired deferred tax assets must be capitalised through profit or loss or without any
effect on income.
d) Fair value of other financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments not traded on an active market is determined by applying suitable valuation techniques, which are selected from a large number of methods. The assumptions used here are largely based on market
conditions prevailing on the balance sheet date. The Group uses present value methods to determine the fair value of large
numbers of available for sale financial assets, which are not traded on active markets.
e) Provisions for pensions
The present value of the pension obligation depends on a large number of factors, which are based on actuarial assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net expenses or income for pensions include the discount rate. Each
change to these assumptions will have an impact on the carrying amount of the pension obligation.
The Group establishes the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate, which is used to settle
the obligation in the calculation of the present value of expected future cash outflows. In determining the discount rate, the
Group takes the interest rate on top-rated, fixed income corporate bonds, which are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits are also paid and whose maturities match those of the pension obligation, as a basis.
Additional material assumptions in the case of pension obligations are based, in part, on market circumstances. More
detailed information and sensitivity analyses concerning these can be found in [19] in the notes.
f) Other provisions
Particularly with other construction-related provisions, there is a risk in individual cases that the actual costs of warranties
or residual performance will be higher. However, this risk is reduced in the majority of projects through case-by-case
analysis. This is also true of provisions in connection with legal disputes.
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT
(1) Sales revenues
The sales revenues of T € 3,268,162 (previous year: T € 3,260,968) concern in particular proceeds from construction contracts, supplies and services to joint ventures as well as other services. The sales revenues from construction contracts,
which include partial profits on an accrual basis according to the actual work accomplished (percentage of completion
method), total T € 3,145,459 (previous year: T € 3,133,137).
The sales revenues only convey an incomplete picture of the performance rendered during the financial year. Therefore, the
entire economic performance is shown and this comprises the proportionate performance in joint ventures and investments.
Construction activities break down as follows:
T€
Germany
International

2015
2,488,925

2014
2,430,507

925,891

874,087

3,414,816

3,304,594

T€
Allocations to/withdrawals from provisions

2015
18,950

2014
0

Insurance refunds, payment of damages, compensation

14,072

8,693

Income from first-time consolidation and deconsolidation

10,119

490

Income from the retransfer of provisions

7,877

653

Income from writing back value adjustments on current assets

4,767

2,804

Gains on foreign currency translation

4,218

5,617

Income from the disposal of fixed assets with the exception of financial assets

4,109

2,014

Rental and lease income

2,685

4,532

Derecognition of liabilities and reimbursement of expenses (previous years)

1,606

1,482

Miscellaneous

4,402

2,902

72,805

29,187

2015
524,195

2014
539,226

1,920,125

1,857,591

2,444,320

2,396,817

(3) Cost of materials and purchased services
T€
Cost of materials
Cost of purchased services

The cost of purchased services relates in particular to services rendered by subcontractors as well as design/planning work,
hiring of equipment and repairs carried out by third parties.

(4) Personnel expenses
T€
Wages

2015
170,451

2014
172,568

Salaries

380,134

362,740

96,624

116,884

Social security contributions and expenses relating to benefits
Cost of pensions and similar obligations

2,529

2,370

649,738

654,562
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The cost of termination pay or pensions and similar obligations includes the service cost and the pension entitlements
earned during the financial year from partial-retirement entitlements converted to pensions to the amount of T € 717
(previous year: T € 569). The interest element from “cost of pensions and similar obligations” is shown under “interest”.
The average number of employees is as follows:
Non-manual employees
Manual employees

2015
6,415

2014
6,134

6,599

7,010

13,014

13,144

T€
Various services and fees

2015
30,283

2014
30,781

Travel and advertising expenses

26,555

26,761

Rental and lease expenses

26,173

27,356

Administration costs

22,649

21,931

Insurance premiums

19,389

14,246

Guarantee certificate costs

10,468

12,382

Discount/impairment current assets

7,593

6,051

Contributions, fees and charges

5,985

6,421

Professional development measures

4,173

3,817

Losses from currency translation

3,484

2,898

Other taxes

1,764

2,089

Book losses on the disposal of assets

1,072

5,786

0

2,270

(5) Other operating expenses

Allocations to/withdrawals from provisions
Miscellaneous

10,779

9,236

170,367

172,025

There are operating lease agreements for the use of plant and machinery. The expenses arising from these agreements are
recognised in the income statement. The payments made in the 2015 financial year total T € 9,692 (previous year:
T € 13,792).
The payment obligations resulting from operating lease agreements over the next few years are presented as follows:
T€
Term up to one year

31.12.2015
9,038

31.12.2014
10,269

Term from one to five years

27,018

24,234

Term more than five years

17,853

18,666

53,909

53,169

T€
Income from joint ventures

2015
49,286

2014
72,643

Expenses from joint ventures

-3,651

-12,793

(6) Results from equity participations

Income from other equity participations
Expenses from other equity participations

3,194

2,096

-7,244

-2,756

41,585

59,190
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(7) Other results from participations
T€
Income from participations
Expenses from participations
Write-down on shares in participations

2015
513

2014
389

-40

-261

-2,200

-1,272

-1,727

-1,144

(8) Depreciation/amortisation of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Scheduled depreciation/amortisation and impairment losses are reported in the “Statement of changes in intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment”.
As in the previous year, goodwill suffered no impairment losses in the reporting year. As in the previous year, property,
plant and equipment and other intangible assets suffered no impairment losses.

(9) Interest
T€
Interest and other financial income
Interest and other financial expenses

2015
3,895

2014
8,692

-9,687

-9,393

-5,792

-701

“Interest and other financial expenses” includes interest elements from the transfer to termination pay and pension provisions to the amount of T € 2,826 (previous year: T € 4,262) as well as from finance leasing to the amount of T € 701 in the
previous year. Financial expenses also include write-downs on loans amounting to T € 618 (previous year: T € 1,584).

(10) Taxes on income
This item comprises taxes on income paid or owed by the individual companies as well as deferred taxes.

Deferred taxes
Taxes on income

2015
9,395

2014
36,492

5,719

-9,338

15,114

27,154

Deferred taxes on actuarial losses of T € -3,441 (previous year: T € 6,955) are recorded neutrally in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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The reason for the difference between the German income tax rate of 29.83% (unchanged) and the Group’s overall tax ratio
is presented as follows:
T€
Earnings before taxes

2015
50,135

2014
58,749

Theoretical tax expenditure 29.83%

14,955

17,525

-782

-656

3,391

1,698

-723

-996

1,234

446

Difference to tax rates abroad
Tax effects from:
Expenses not deductible against tax
Tax-free earnings
“At equity” reporting of associated companies
Effects from capital consolidation

-2,962

0

Tax refunds/additional tax payments

-3,818

5,959

Change in the value adjustment on deferred tax assets
Other
Tax expenditure reported

4,038

4,207

-219

-1,029

15,114

27,154

NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET
(11) Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
The composition of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment is shown in changes thereto.
No borrowing costs were capitalised for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in the reporting year.

Goodwill
At the balance sheet date, goodwill breaks down as follows:
T€
Ed. Züblin AG

31.12.2015
16,935

31.12.2014
16,935

Züblin Chimney and Refractory GmbH

8,632

8,632

Züblin Hoch- und Brückenbau GmbH

5,667

5,667

N.V. STRABAG Belgium S.A.

3,300

3,300

Züblin Stahlbau GmbH/NE Sander-Gruppe

2,500

2,500

Josef Riepl Unternehmen für Ingenieur- und Hochbau GmbH

1,317

1,317

Eberhard Pöhner Unternehmen für Hoch- und Tiefbau GmbH

1,000

1,000

REPASS-SANIERUNGSTECHNIK GMBH

551

551

39,902

39,902

As in the previous year, no goodwill arose from the capital consolidation in the 2015 financial year. As in the previous year,
the comparison of carrying amounts with the respective recoverable amount of the cash generating units as part of the
annual impairment test did not result in any impairment charges as at 31 December 2015. Because of the industry’s specific characteristics (long-term production), multi-year planning is subject to uncertainties. Should our planned targets not be
met in relation to operating performance and expected return, the need to recognise further impairment of goodwill in
subsequent years cannot be ruled out.
The key assumptions in determining the recoverable amount are explained in the accounting and valuation methods. With
regard to determining the need for impairment as part of a sensitivity analysis, please refer to the comments on estimates
under the explanations of accounting and valuation methods.
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Development costs
Expenses for research and development are incurred in numerous technical special proposals, in actual competing
projects and in introducing construction projects and products on the market.
As in the previous year, no development expenses were capitalised in the 2015 financial year. Research and development
expenses incurred in the 2015 financial year to the amount of T € 1,749 (previous year: T € 2,983) did not fulfil the criteria
for capitalisation and were therefore expensed in full.

Leasing
There are no longer any finance lease agreements in property, plant and equipment on the balance sheet date (previous
year: carrying amounts with a restriction on disposal T € 315).

Purchase commitments
At the balance sheet date there were obligations to the amount of T € 15,683 (previous year: T € 7,644) in connection with
the purchase of property, plant and equipment which have not yet been taken into account in the financial statements.

(12) Financial assets
Details on the Group’s participations (shares of more than 20%) are shown in the statement of shareholdings. The development of financial assets in the year under review is presented as follows:

T€
2015

As at
31.12.2014

Change
in consolidated
companies/
currency
differences

Reclassifications

Additions

Disposals

Write-downs/
write-ups

As at
31.12.2015

5,706

22

0

4,600

-4,135

0

6,193

7,236

-418

0

2,630

-5

-2,200

7,244

827

0

0

0

0

0

827

8,063

-418

0

2,630

-5

-2,200

8,071

As at
31.12.2013

Change
in consolidated
companies/
currency
differences

Reclassifications

Additions

Disposals

Write-downs/
write-ups

As at
31.12.2014

1,514

175

2,189

3,325

-1,497

0

5,706

7,499

-31

0

1,040

0

-1,272

7,236

3,021

0

-2,189

0

-5

0

827

10,520

-31

-2,189

1,040

-5

-1,272

8,063

Shares in equity
participations
Shares in
companies
Other
participations
Other financial
assets

T€
2014
Shares in equity
participations
Shares in
affiliated
companies
Other
participations
Other financial
assets

With the exception of shares in equity participations, financial assets are all measured at amortised cost.
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The value adjustments to the financial assets valued in accordance with IAS 39 in the financial year have evolved as follows:
Shares in affiliated
companies/participations
(IAS 39)
T€
Gross amount

31.12.2015
15,818

31.12.2014
14,845

6,782

6,223

Value adjustment
As at 01.01.
Change in consolidated companies/reclassifications

-1,064

-713

Changes in the current year

2,029

1,272

As at 31.12.

7,747

6,782

Carrying amount

8,071

8,063

Disclosures on associated companies
The following table subdivides the carrying amount and Group share of the profit and other comprehensive income of
associates, which are immaterial individually, in aggregated form:
T€
Sum of equity carrying amounts on 31 December
Group share of net income for the year from continuing operations
Group share of other comprehensive income
Group share of total results

2015
6,193

2014
5,706

-941

-571

23

175

-918

-396

Pro rata losses, which are not reported in the balance sheet, were incurred to the amount of T € 607 (previous year:
T € 198). The cumulative pro rata loss comes to T € 1,024 on the reporting date (previous year: T € 417).

Disclosures on joint ventures
The following table subdivides the carrying amount and the Group share in the profit and other comprehensive income of
the joint venture BRVZ Bau-Rechen- und Verwaltungszentrum GmbH & Co. KG:
T€
Sum of equity carrying amounts on 31 December
Group share of net income for the year from continuing operations
Group share of other comprehensive income
Group share of total results

2015
0

2014
0

-3,109

-89

0

0

-3,109

-89

Pro rata profits, which are not reported in the balance sheet, were incurred to the amount of T € 149 (previous year:
T € 171). The cumulative pro rata loss comes to T € 384 on the reporting date (previous year: T € 533).
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Disclosures on construction joint ventures
In the Group, construction joint ventures are classified as joint ventures and their results are reported under results from
equity participations.
For the 2015 financial year, the following financial information on the largest construction joint ventures (JV) is presented
100%:

T€
2015
A-Lanes A15 Civil V.O.F., Netherlands

Share
in %

Sales
revenues

Current
assets

Of which cash
and cash
equivalents

Non-current
assets

Current
liabilities

45.0

13,495

5,570

605

0

5,570

JV BAB 8 Ulm–Augsburg

15.0

76,166

25,747

2,651

0

25,747

JV BAU BSH

50.0

59,924

32,499

29,779

0

32,499

JV Prison Werl

50.0

34,627

12,419

78

1

12,420

JV Albabstieg tunnel, Ulm, PA 2,4 VE 240

60.0

65,830

5,444

2,226

20,947

26,391

JV Sanierung ARA Steih, F-HUNINGUE

33.0

18,934

22,145

9,233

3,975

26,120

JV GIU ZF Saarbrücken

50.0

15,272

3,383

4

0

3,383

JV Metro Nordhavnen Contract 2, København

60.0

33,828

13,771

12,533

823

14,594

TANGLA THV

40.0

29,028

15,903

11,657

0

15,903

JV Tunnel Rastatt

50.0

39,533

23,130

7,188

3,789

26,919

In the 2015 financial year, T € 15,307 from the above-mentioned construction joint ventures is reported under profits from
construction joint ventures in results from equity participations and T € 557 is reported under losses from construction joint
ventures including anticipated losses.

T€
2014
A-Lanes A15 Civil V.O.F., Netherlands

Share
in %

Sales
revenues

Current
assets

Of which cash
and cash
equivalents

Non-current
assets

Current
liabilities

33.3

160,645

70,645

203

0

70,645

JV BAB 8 Ulm–Augsburg

15.0

52,504

39,332

23,281

140

39,472

JV BAU BSH

50.0

52,968

33,154

31,037

0

33,154

JV Building 128 Daimler Stuttgart

55.0

17,123

2,048

1,634

0

2,048

JV Gerber-Stuttgart

60.0

8,042

2,783

2,079

0

2,783

JV GKM Block 9 - extended shell

27.0

17,924

19,143

4,630

0

19,143

JV IGS Mühlenberg

40.0

23,547

10,465

10,448

21

10,486

JV Prison Werl

50.0

13,607

1,012

69

13

1,025

JV Lippe canal bridge

79.2

6,946

5,305

1,987

0

5,305
33,913

JV Cologne North-South
33.3

3,915

33,830

11,788

83

JV Shell DZNE Bonn

Stadtbahn

90.0

10,708

565

394

2

567

JV Albabstieg tunnel, Ulm, PA 2,4 VE

60.0

39,409

4,286

30

23,827

28,113

JV ZMM Nordhavnen

40.0

1,571

1,893

1,450

0

1,893

S.M. DUCHENE/STRABAG

50.0

13,423

4,022

2,003

0

4,022

In the 2014 financial year, T € 20,906 from the above-mentioned construction joint ventures is reported under profits from
construction joint ventures in results from equity participations and T € 6,588 is reported under losses from construction
joint ventures including anticipated losses
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(13) Deferred taxes
Temporary differences between the valuations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS and the
respective tax valuations have the following effect on the respective tax deferrals shown in the balance sheet:
31.12.2015

31.12.2014

Deferred
tax assets

Deferred
tax liabilities

Deferred
tax assets

Deferred
tax liabilities

1,419

3,645

2,242

3,670

0

3,691

0

5,038

2,401

55,911

2,018

50,544

17,966

0

26,423

0

4,638

0

2,715

0

15,252

0

13,482

0

41,676

63,247

46,880

59,252

-36,644

-36,644

-41,702

-41,702

5,032

26,603

5,178

17,550

2015
-12,372

2014
-28,746

Change recognised in the income statement

-5,719

9,338

Change not recognised in the income statement (IAS 19)

-3,441

6,955

T€
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Current assets
Receivables and other assets
Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Current liabilities
Provisions
Fiscal losses carried forward
Capitalised fiscal losses carried forward
Offsetting of tax assets and liabilities
Balance sheet entry

The development of deferred taxes is presented as follows:
T€
As at 01.01. Credit balance(+)/debit balance(–)

Other change
As at 31.12. Credit balance(+)/debit balance(–)

-39

81

-21,571

-12,372

The other change is mainly the result of currency translation. On the closing date, deferred tax liabilities recognised in
equity with no impact on the income statement amount to T € 11,261 (previous year: T € 14,702).
Deferred taxes on losses carried forward have been capitalised in as much as they can probably be netted off against
future profits. For differences in carrying amounts and fiscal losses carried forward with regard to corporation tax of
T € 47,977 (previous year: T € 60,228) and trade tax of T € 23,150 (previous year: T € 7,386), deferred tax assets were not
recognised because their effectiveness in terms of tax relief is not sufficiently assured. Non-capitalised tax losses carried
forward can, as a rule, be used for an unlimited period.
In the previous year, deferred tax assets on loss-related temporary differences amounting to some T € 239 were not
recognised because their effectiveness in terms of tax relief is not sufficiently assured.

(14) Inventories
T€
Raw materials and supplies
Finished products, goods and buildings

31.12.2015
33,508

31.12.2014
35,145

583

1,285

Land without buildings

16,550

15,450

Advance payments made

17,091

22,122

67,732

74,002

As in the previous year, no impairments were recorded in inventories in the financial year. A write-up of T € 1,100 was
recognised for the impaired land without buildings following an improvement in market conditions. These are shown with a
net realisable value of T € 15,400 (previous year: T € 14,300), however, they are not expected to be realised within one year.
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The other inventories of T € 52,332 (previous year: T € 59,702) are recognised at the cost of purchase or manufacture.

(15) Receivables and other assets
The receivables and other assets are broken down as follows:
31.12.2015
T€
Trade receivables

total

31.12.2014

of which
current non-current

total

of which
current non-current

Receivables from construction contracts

1,963,166

1,963,166

0

1,925,942

1,925,942

0

for which advance payments received

-1,596,880

-1,596,880

0

-1,617,707

-1,617,707

0

366,286

366,286

0

308,235

308,235

0

202,370

202,370

0

213,233

213,233

0

568,656

568,656

0

521,468

521,468

0

Non-financial assets

11,151

11,151

0

9,289

9,289

0

Receivables from taxes on income

15,023

15,023

0

6,890

6,890

0

Receivables from affiliated companies

28,501

28,338

163

42,715

34,552

8,163

Receivables from equity participations

3,445

3,445

0

2,657

2,657

0

Remaining trade receivables

Other receivables and assets

Receivables from companies in which
participations are held
Remaining receivables and assets
Total

1,482

1,482

0

1,586

1,586

0

23,372

20,402

2,970

26,073

23,435

2,638

56,800

53,667

3,133

73,031

62,230

10,801

651,630

648,497

3,133

610,678

599,877

10,801

The receivables from construction contracts concerning all contracts not yet invoiced at the balance sheet date are
broken down as follows:
31.12.2015
3,366,536

31.12.2014
2,812,248

Profits accrued by the balance sheet date

211,942

183,359

Cumulative losses

-95,127

-104,418

Minus receivables reported under liabilities

-1,520,185

-965,247

Receivables from construction contracts

1,963,166

1,925,942

Receivables from construction contracts to the amount of T € 1,502,185 (previous year: T € 965,247) are reported under
liabilities because the advance payments received exceed the amount of receivables.
In accordance with custom in this branch of business, the client may withhold invoice settlement to safeguard his contractual rights. The amounts withheld are as a rule covered by collateral (bank or Group guarantees).
Please refer to [22] Financial instruments/credit risk with regard to the criteria for the creation of value adjustments.
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Value adjustments on “remaining trade receivables” have evolved as follows during the financial year:
T€
Gross amount

31.12.2015
217,467

31.12.2014
234,072

As at 01.01.

20,839

19,376

Changes in consolidated companies

-4,277

0

Transfer/utilisation

-1,465

1,463

As at 31.12.

15,097

20,839

202,370

213,233

31.12.2015
77,056

31.12.2014
91,892

18,861

17,580

Value adjustment

Carrying amount

The value adjustments on other financial assets comprise the following:
T€
Gross amount
Value adjustment
As at 01.01.
Changes in consolidated companies/reclassifications

-4

0

1,399

1,281

As at 31.12.

20,256

18,861

Carrying amount

56,800

73,031

Transfer/utilisation

Please refer to note [22] Financial instruments with regard to the criteria for the creation of value adjustments.

(16) Cash and cash equivalents
T€
Securities
Cash in hand
Bank balances

31.12.2015
2,812

31.12.2014
2,812

358

478

798,649

780,598

801,819

783,888

Cash and cash equivalents include balances abroad amounting to T € 5,559 (previous year: T € 7,046), which are subject to
restrictions on transfer in as much as a monetary transfer to other countries may only take place once the construction
contracts have been concluded and declared. Cash and cash equivalents are not pledged.

(17) Equity
The company’s fully subscribed capital stock amounts to € 20,451,675.25, divided into 8,000,000 no-par shares.
The General Meeting of Ed. Züblin AG on 2 July 2015 resolved to pay a dividend of € 0.205 per no-par share entitled to
dividends (= € 1,640,000.00) from the net retained profit from the 2014 financial year of € 19,497,369.61, to allocate an
amount of € 17,857,000.00 to other retained earnings and to carry the remaining amount of € 369,61 forward to the new
account.
In its separate financial statements prepared in accordance with the German Commercial Code, Ed. Züblin AG reports net
income for the year 2015 of € 24,064,762.24 (previous year: T € 38,991). Of this figure, € 12,032,381.00 were allocated to
other retained earnings in accordance with § 58 Para. 2 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG).
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The reserves shown in the balance sheet encompass currency differences, the statutory and free retained earnings as well
as changes in equity with no effect on income based on actuarial gains/losses in the calculation of provisions for personnel.
STRABAG SE, Villach/Austria, has held a majority share in Ed. Züblin AG since 23 November 2005. It has held a 57.26%
stake indirectly via Ilbau Liegenschaftsverwaltung GmbH, Hoppegarten, since 23 December 2015.
The Group’s capital management is aimed at safeguarding an appropriate credit rating and complying with national and
international criteria for project tenders through an appropriate equity ratio (on an equity including non-controlling shares).
Ed. Züblin AG ensures that all Group companies have sufficient capital in the form of equity and outside capital.
There are no external minimum capital requirements.

(18) Provisions

T€
Provisions for pensions
Construction-related provisions

As at
31.12.2014
141,971

Currency
differences/
reclassifications
17

Change
in consolidated
companies
-26

Transfer
2,842

Retransfer
0

Utilisation
18,935

As at
31.12.2015
125,869

63,243

-4,550

-671

737

3

18,042

40,714

Workforce-related provisions

1,745

0

3

142

7

345

1,538

Remaining provisions

9,569

-3,479

-227

310

146

2,431

3,596

216,528

-8,012

-921

4,031

156

39,753

171,717

Construction-related provisions

57,824

-1,937

3

49,041

7,703

42,053

55,175

Workforce-related provisions

36,230

423

-271

32,423

0

35,299

33,506

Remaining provisions

16,066

10,268

-14

14,918

19

16,025

25,194

Current provisions

110,120

8,754

-282

96,382

7,722

93,377

113,875

Total

326,648

742

-1,203

100,413

7,878

133,130

285,592

Non-current provisions

Provisions for pensions

Mortality tables

Pension obligations
Germany
Dr. Klaus Heubeck
2.3%

Discount rate

(previous year 2.0%)
1.7%

Increase in pensions

(previous year 2.25%)
0%

Salary trend
Retirement age – women/men

(previous year 0%)
60–65
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There have been the following changes in the present value of the pension obligation:
T€
Present value of pension obligations (DBO*) on 01.01.

2015
145,755

Change in consolidated companies/reclassifications
Service cost
Interest cost
Pension payments
Actuarial gains(–)/losses(+)resulting from empirical adjustments

2014
126,168

-9

-6

717

569

2,826

4,262

-8,602

-8,561

576

893

Actuarial gains(–)/losses(+)resulting from a change to the discount rate

-12,098

22,430

Present value of pension obligations (DBO*) on 31.12.

129,165

145,755

Less plan assets
Carrying amount of pension obligations (DBO) on 31.12.

-3,296

-3,784

125,869

141,971

31.12.2015
37,757

31.12.2014
49,293

-11,261

-14,702

26,496

34,591

11–20 years
52,006

> 20 years
39,424

Plan assets essentially consist of cash equivalents and reinsurance policies.
The cumulative actuarial losses recognised directly in equity are as follows:
T€
Actuarial losses before deferred taxes
Deferred taxes
Actuarial losses after deferred taxes

The weighted average term of the obligations or maturity profile is broken down as follows:
T€
Provisions for pensions

≤ 1 year
8,532

1–5 years
40,223

6–10 years
35,262

The durations (weighted average term) of pension obligations amounts to 9.9 years (previous year: 10.8 years).
The provisions for pensions are exposed to various risks, which mainly consist of general fluctuations in interest rates and
inflation. Assuming that all other parameters remained the same, a change in the discount rate of +/– 0.5 percentage points
and a change in the increase in pensions of +/– 0.25 percentage points would have the following impact on the amount of
provisions for pensions:
Discount rate
T€
Pension obligation

+0.5% points
122,076

Increase in pensions
-0.5% points
136,201

+0.25% points
132,056

-0.25% points
125,668

There is also the risk that general life expectancy will be higher than the figure assumed when valuing the provisions for
pensions. If life expectancy was increased by one year, the pension obligation reported as at 31 December 2015 would
amount to T € 135,462.

Other provisions
The construction-related provisions include, inter alia, warranty and guarantee obligations, contract implementation cost,
and subsequent cost of contracts already invoiced as well as threatened losses from pending business. The workforcerelated provisions mainly include profit sharing, anniversary obligations and personnel adjustment expenses. Other provisions include provisions for legal costs, fees and damages.
With the construction-related and other provisions, the cash outflows are generally between one and five years, in individual cases up to 16 years. The anniversary provisions shown under provisions for personnel have a term of up to 40 years.
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The companies included in the consolidated financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG are exposed to several threatened or
pending legal proceedings, whose outcome is either indeterminable or cannot be predicted with certainty because of the
uncertainty connected with legal proceedings of this kind. Provisions have been created to the extent required for probable
or already pending legal proceedings of this kind. This is also true of legal proceedings of which the Züblin Group has
become aware although writs have not yet been served by the competent courts. Since these provisions, which are taken
into account in the consolidated financial statements, are based on estimates, it is entirely possible that completion of
these proceedings will force us to make payments above and beyond the amounts provided and whose extent or range
cannot be sufficiently precisely determined on 31 December 2015.
Overall, no negative effects are expected from these proceedings, which could have a material impact on the Group’s net
assets, financial position or the result of its operations.

(19) Liabilities
The liabilities are broken down as follows:
T€
Financial liabilities
Payables to banks

31.12.2015

31.12.2014

106,455

71,734

of which secured by mortgages
Payables arising from finance leases

0

114

106,455

71,848

Trade payables1)
Receivables from construction contracts

-1,520,185

-965,247

for which advance payments received

1,692,937

1,098,502

172,752

133,255

615,502

599,401

788,253

732,656

Non-financial liabilities

61,158

92,551

Liabilities from income taxes

23,309

32,035

26,973

24,220

Other trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Due to affiliated companies
in which participations are held
Remaining liabilities
Total

All liabilities are current.

1)

The advance payment balance from construction contracts included here is classified as non-financial.

103

137

65,436

52,963

92,512

77,320

1,071,687

1,006,410

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Due to equity participations and companies

86

ED. ZÜBLIN AG Annual Report 2015

OTHER DISCLOSURES
(20) Contingent liabilities
The Group has undertaken the following suretyships and guarantees:
T€
Suretyships and guarantees with the exception of financial guarantees
Liabilities from warranty agreements

31.12.2015
1,157

31.12.2014
4,990

985

0

2,142

4,990

In the construction industry, the issue of various guarantees to cover the commitments contained in construction contracts
is both usual and necessary. These guarantees are usually issued by banks or credit insurance companies (= guarantors)
and, in essence, comprise tender guarantees, performance guarantees, advance payment guarantees and warranty bonds.
In the event of a guarantee being called, the guarantors have a contractual right of recourse against the Group. There is
only a risk of a guarantee being called if the underlying contractual commitments have not been properly fulfilled.
Obligations or probable risks arising under guarantees of this kind are taken into account in the balance sheet as liabilities
or provisions.
The guarantees mainly serve to secure contractual obligations or subsidiaries’ ability to meet their obligations.
The following additional guarantees in which no amount was specified were provided:
– Ed. Züblin AG undertakes to endow its former subsidiary Züblin Baugesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna (Austria), in such a way
that it is able at any time to fulfil its obligations under the “H3/4 Münster/Wiesing” construction project properly and on
time. In connection with the construction project last mentioned, Ed. Züblin AG confirms that, in principle, it provides all
its investments with full support in terms of expertise, personnel, plant and technical equipment.
– As the sole shareholder in Züblin AS, Oslo (Norway), Ed. Züblin AG undertakes to provide it with financial resources until
at least March 2016 to enable it to fulfil its obligations to its suppliers and its former employees at any time.
Together with companies in the STRABAG SE Group, Ed. Züblin AG has made the following declarations – in essence to
demonstrate that it has the necessary technical qualifications – as part of international projects, although a matching deed
of release has been provided by STRABAG SE for all projects.
For STRABAG a.s., Prague/Czech Republic, support with implementation and, if necessary, the provision of assets was
promised for the “Selection of the general supplier to the NCDT Valtice construction site” project.
For STRABAG AG, Spittal an der Drau (Austria), as part of the “EOS – Energy Optimisation Sludge treatment in Vienna”
project, Ed. Züblin AG has promised that it will provide all the resources needed.
As at the balance sheet date, it is considered unlikely that these obligations will arise since the underlying liabilities can be
satisfied by the respective principal debtor.
In the case of joint ventures and similar legal institutions abroad in which companies of the Züblin Group are participating,
there is joint and several liability together with the other partners, as customary in this branch of business.
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(21) Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
The cash flow statement is presented using the indirect method, broken down according to cash flows resulting from
operating activities, investment activities and financing activities. Cash and cash equivalents consist exclusively of cash in
hand, balances at banks and marketable securities. The effects of changes in the consolidated group were eliminated and
shown in cash flow from investment activities.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
T€
Marketable securities
Cash in hand
Balances at banks

31.12.2015
2,812

31.12.2014
2,812

358

478

798,649

780,598

801,819

783,888

2015
6,244

2014
3,546

The following items are included in cash flow from operating activities in the reporting year:
T€
Interest paid
Interest received
Taxes paid (–)/reimbursed (+)
Dividends received

3,891

7,772

-26,254

-40,664

3,137

2,007

(22) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract, which leads simultaneously to a financial asset at one company and to a financial
liability or an equity instrument at the other company. In particular, financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables as well as other receivables and derivatives. As a rule, financial liabilities establish an obligation to return
cash or another financial asset. These include, in particular, financial liabilities such as liabilities to banks and finance lease
liabilities as well as trade payables. In principle, they are recognised for the first time on the settlement date.

Derivative instruments are used solely to hedge existing currency and interest rate risks. Use of derivative financial instruments is subject to appropriate authorisation and control processes. A link to an underlying transaction is mandatory;
trading transactions are not permissible.
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and the Group has, in essence, transferred all risks and opportunities associated with ownership.
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At the balance sheet date, financial instruments are broken down as follows:
31.12.2015

31.12.2014

Valuation
category
according
to IAS 39

Carrying
amount

Fair value

Carrying
amount

Fair value

Shares in affiliated companies

AfS

7,244

7,244

7,236

7,236

Participations

AfS

827

827

827

827

Trade receivables

L&R

568,656

568,656

521,468

521,468

Other financial assets

L&R

56,800

56,800

73,031

73,031

Cash and cash equivalents

L&R

801,819

801,819

783,888

783,888

1,435,346

1,435,346

1,386,450

1,386,450

T€
ASSETS
Valuation at amortised cost

Valuation at fair value
Derivatives for hedging purposes

-186

-186

-2,335

-2,335

-186

-186

-2,335

-2,335

LIABILITIES
Valuation at cost of purchase
Financial liabilities

FLaC

-106,455

-106,455

-71,848

-71,848

Trade payables

FLaC

-615,502

-615,502

-599,401

-599,401

Other financial liabilities

FLaC

-92,512

-92,512

-77,320

-77,320

-814,469

-814,469

-748,569

-748,569

620,691

620,691

635,546

635,546

1,427,275

1,427,275

1,378,387

1,378,387

8,071

8,071

8,063

8,063

-814,469

-814,469

-748,569

-748,569

Total
By valuation categories
Loans and receivables (L&R)
Available for sale (AfS)
Financial liabilities at amortised costs (FLaC)
Derivatives for hedging purposes
Total

-186

-186

-2,335

-2,335

620,691

620,691

635,546

635,546

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial receivables have short residual terms in the vast majority
of cases. Therefore, their carrying amounts on the balance sheet date equate approximately to their fair values. The loans
included in non-current other assets are mainly interest-bearing. Their carrying value therefore corresponds to the present
value of the financial assets. The shares in affiliated companies and participations are measured at cost, since their fair
values cannot be reliably determined. Derivatives for hedging purposes are not traded in an active market. Their fair value
is determined using valuation methods based on observable market data. In specific cases, interest and currency curves
that match the term of the derivative are used for the valuation.
Trade payables as well as other financial liabilities have short terms, as a rule; the reported figures more or less represent
their fair values. The fair values of bonds, payables to banks and finance lease liabilities are calculated as the present
values of the payments associated therewith, taking account of the respective market parameters applicable.
Net earnings from financial instruments according to valuation categories breaks down as follows:
T€
Interest

L&R
2015
3,891

AfS
2015
0

FLaC
2015
-6,244

L&R
2014
8,692

AfS
2014
0

FLaC
2014
-3,546
0

Impairment of value, losses on receivables, reinstatement of
-3,443

-2,200

0

-4,831

-1,272

Capital gains/losses

original value

0

9

0

0

149

0

Income from the derecognition of liabilities

0

0

1,199

0

0

1,196

Incoming payments from receivables that have been written off
Net earnings

0

0

514

0

0

2

448

-2,191

-4,531

3,861

-1,123

-2,348

Dividends and expenses from participations, which are shown in results from participations, are part of the operating result
and are therefore not part of net earnings. Impairment of value, reinstatement of original value, gains on disposals and
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losses on disposals of loans and receivables (L&R) as well as financial liabilities at amortised cost (FLaC) are shown in other
income or other expenses.
Impairment of value, reinstatement of original value, gains on disposal and losses on disposal of available for sale financial
instruments (AfS) are shown in results from participations, if they are participations or shares in affiliated companies, and
otherwise in other income and other expenses or in interest.
With regard to loans outstanding and receivables that have neither been written down nor are in default, there are no signs
at the balance sheet date indicating that the debtors will not fulfil their payment obligations.

Principles of risk management
With regard to its assets, liabilities and planned transactions, the Züblin Group is exposed to interest rate, currency, credit
and liquidity risks. The aim of financial risk management is to limit these risks through ongoing finance-oriented activities.
The basic principles of financial policy are laid down by the Management Board and monitored by the Supervisory Board.
Implementation of this financial policy and ongoing risk management is the responsibility of Group Treasury of BRVZ BauRechen- und Verwaltungszentrum GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne. Certain transactions require prior approval by the Management Board, which is kept regularly informed of the extent and the amount of current risk exposure.

Interest rate risk
The interest rate of financial instruments, both on the assets and the liabilities side, is generally variable. Accordingly, the
risk consists in rising interest expense or a lower interest yield resulting from disadvantageous changes of the market
interest rate.

EUR

Carrying
amount
T€
665,833

Average
interest rate
2015
0.37%

DKK

83,625

0.00%

AED

23,599

0.08%

CNY

7,137

1.69%

PLN

5,243

1.17%

SEK

3,974

0.10%

Other

9,238

0.27%

798,649

0.33%

Carrying
amount
T€
93,328

Average
interest rate
2015
1.95%

13,127

6.83%

106,455

2.55%

Balances with banks

Payables to banks
EUR
CLP

If the level of interest rates had been 50 basis points higher (lower) on 31 December 2015, earnings and equity would have
been T € 3,491 higher (lower) (previous year: T € 3,660 higher (lower)). The calculation is based on closing volumes of
interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities on 31 December 2015. Tax effects resulting from changes in interest rates
were not taken into consideration in the calculation.
In 2015, the figure for hedging transactions for hedged items was unchanged at T € 166,070. The negative value of the
hedging transactions comes to T € 254 (previous year: T € 810) and was recognised through the income statement.
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balance sheet date – breaks down as follows:
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Currency risk
In essence, there is exposure to currency risks at Züblin International GmbH and Züblin Spezialtiefbau GmbH and their
subsidiaries and investments. As a rule, construction contracts are obtained in the national currency in operational
business and their implementation including tasking sub-contractors is also largely carried out in the national currency.
Materials are also purchased locally, in the national currency (natural hedge), as a rule. Currency risk only emerges if
personnel and/or equipment need to be deployed from Germany or from financial transfers from Germany. Translation risks
may also result from the conversion of results from companies reporting in foreign currency in the Züblin consolidated
financial statements.
Derivative financial instruments are used to limit this currency risk and to secure the calculation. As at 31 December 2015,
there are hedging transactions for underlying transactions of T € 12,029 (previous year: T € 29,734) from which half the
cash flows are expected in 2016. The positive value of these hedging transactions comes to T € 68 (previous year: negative
T € 1,525) and was recognised in its entirety in the income statement.
Changes in major Group currencies:

AED

Rate on
balance
sheet date
31.12.2015
1€=
4.000

Average
rate
2015
1€=
4.055

Rate on
balance
sheet date
31.12.2014
1€=
4.469

Average
rate
2014
1€=
4.855

CLP

772.022

727.621

736.134

757.891

DKK

7.463

7.461

7.445

7.455

SEK

9.190

9.337

9.393

9.121

Currency

A change in the earnings for the year because of unhedged currency positions in the case of primary financial instruments
would influence earnings by T € 5,293 (previous year: T € 6,545) in the event of an average change in the exchange rate of
10%. The calculation is based on closing volumes of financial assets and liabilities at the respective year-end.

Credit risk
At the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk to which financial assets are exposed is T € 633,527 (previous year:
T € 602,562) and equates to the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet. Of this figure, T € 568,656 (previous year:
T € 521,468) relate to trade receivables. Receivables from construction contracts relate to ongoing construction projects
and are therefore not yet due in their entirety. Of the other trade receivables amounting to T € 202,369 (previous year:
T € 213,233), only insignificant amounts are overdue and not written down.
The recoverability of construction receivables is constantly reviewed from aspects of country risk in the operational units
responsible for the construction activity and from the respective client’s actual credit risk. In the case of private clients,
receivables are hedged via credit management instruments such as payment guarantees, if applicable. In the case of
traditional building construction contracts, credit risk is often reduced by advance payments from the clients. Credit risks
are taken into account through individual value adjustments.
The credit risk with respect to other primary financial instruments on the assets side is also considered to be low since the
contract partners are exclusively financial institutes of excellent standing.
Individual value adjustments are made to financial assets if the carrying amount of the financial asset is higher than the
present value of the future cash flows. The adjustments are shown using separate value adjustment accounts. Financial
difficulties, breach of contract, the customer’s insolvency, considerable delays in payment by the customer are used as
triggers for this. If a receivable is unrecoverable, it is derecognised. The individual value adjustments comprise numerous
individual items, of which none is material when considered individually. In addition to the assessment of the credit risk,
account is also taken of the respective country risk.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity for the Züblin Group not only signifies cash in hand and credit balances with banks in the narrower sense but also
the cash and guarantee credit lines available.
The Züblin Group has bilateral cash credit lines totalling some € 10 million, which may, however, also be used by other
companies within the STRABAG SE Group. Thanks to its excellent liquidity, Ed. Züblin AG again did not make use of any
bilateral cash credit lines in 2015.
Ed. Züblin AG has bilateral guarantee facilities totalling more than € 600 million (previous year: € 550 million). In addition, it
still participates in STRABAG SE’s syndicated guarantee facility, which, after having been prematurely refinanced in 2014,
totals € 2.0 billion and now runs to mid-2019 at least.
Financial liabilities result in the following payment obligations (interest payments calculated on the basis of the interest rate
on 31.12. and repayments) in subsequent years:
T€
Financial liabilities
Payables to banks

Carrying
amount
31.12.2015
106,455

Cash flows
≤ 1 year
106,677

1–5 years
0

> 5 years
0

Payables to banks relate primarily to the current project finance for a construction project. As in the previous year, the
credit line for this project, which is committed up to 31 December 2016, amounts to € 145 million, of which about € 93
million is currently being utilised.
Trade payables and other liabilities (see [19]) lead in essence to cash outflows equal to their carrying amounts as they fall
due.

(23) Business with related parties

In addition to the Management Board and the Supervisory Board, both natural persons and legal entities and companies,
which can control the reporting company or one of its subsidiaries or can exercise a decisive influence, either directly or
indirectly, on the reporting company or its subsidiaries are considered as related parties in the sense of IAS 24 “Related
Party Disclosures”, as well as those natural persons and legal entities, which the reporting company can control or on
which it can exercise a decisive influence.
In particular, STRABAG SE, Villach/Austria, with its direct and indirect subsidiaries and companies consolidated at equity,
to which 57.26% of the shares in Ed. Züblin AG, Stuttgart are attributable, counts as an important related party.
Furthermore, the core shareholders of STRABAG SE, the Haselsteiner Group (Haselsteiner Family Private Foundation,
Dr. Hans Peter Haselsteiner), the Raiffeisen-Holding Niederösterreich-Wien Group (Vienna/Austria), the UNIQA Group
(Vienna/Austria) and Rasperia Trading Limited (Limassol/Cyprus), which is controlled by Mr Oleg V. Deripaska (Moscow/
Russian Federation) are to be viewed as related parties in the case of Ed. Züblin AG.
Material transactions as defined in this provision were undertaken by companies in the Züblin Group with companies in
whose management or supervisory bodies these people are represented. These companies are mainly to be attributed to
STRABAG SE.
In addition, Ed. Züblin AG companies have not undertaken any material transactions with members of the Management
Board or Supervisory Board of Ed. Züblin AG. This is also true of close family members of this group of people. Remuneration for employees in key positions encompasses the benefits due short-term presented under the disclosures on
management and supervisory bodies and post-employment benefits.
STRABAG SE has agreed with Ed. Züblin AG that the two companies will provide each other with mutual support in
tendering and bidding in foreign markets. In as much as Züblin has promised references or more extensive support, it has
been released from expenses and risks vis-à-vis third parties by STRABAG SE.
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In the 2015 financial year, the Züblin Group had the following relations with related parties of the STRABAG SE Group:
T€
Goods and services supplied

2015
196,610

2014
216,392

Goods and services received

190,728

200,940

Receivables as at 31.12.

26,192

31,896

Payables as at 31.12.

18,307

19,773

The equity participation BRVZ Bau-Rechen- und Verwaltungszentrum GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne supplies commercial,
administrative and information technology services for Ed. Züblin AG and its affiliated companies, which are charged at
cost of sales.
The equity participation BMTI Baumaschinentechnik International GmbH, Cologne supplies services relating to equipment
planning, investment and disinvestment in the equipment pool, as well as maintenance and repairs, which are charged at
cost of sales.
The transactions are included in the above-mentioned table.
Additional reportable transactions accrued in the 2015 financial year:
In the past 2015 financial year, Ed. Züblin AG granted STRABAG SE a short-term loan. STRABAG SE did not make use of
the loan.
Normal third party financing and insurance transactions were conducted with the Raiffeisen-Holding Niederösterreich-Wien
Group and the UNIQA Group.
There are many legal transactions with other companies where members of the Supervisory Board and the Management
Board fulfil management roles. However, these are included in the STRABAG SE figures; please see the table above
showing “Related parties STRABAG SE Group”.
The Züblin Group also had the following business relationships with associates in the 2015 financial year:
T€
Goods and services supplied
Goods and services received
Receivables as at 31.12.
Payables as at 31.12.

2015
7,336

2014
2,281

146

335

4,927

4,243

103

137

There were suretyships and guarantees for associates of some € 0.4 million in the reporting year (previous year: € 4.3
million). As in the previous year, there were no financial guarantees in the reporting year.
There were the following business relationships with construction joint ventures, which must be classified as joint ventures
in accordance with IAS 24.9, in the 2015 financial year:
T€
Goods and services supplied

2015
350,994

2014
227,594

Goods and services received

54,272

41,682

Receivables as at 31.12.

98,754

101,925

Payables as at 31.12.

62,483

74,170

There were suretyships and guarantees for construction joint ventures of € 0.7 million in the reporting year (previous year:
€ 0.7 million).
Ed. Züblin AG maintains normal business relations with affiliated subsidiaries that are not consolidated. Transactions with
these related parties are the result of normal business dealings.
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The Züblin Group also had the following business relationships with affiliated companies that are not consolidated in the
2015 financial year:
T€
Goods and services supplied

2015
3,217

2014
11,401

Goods and services received

6,831

7,212

Receivables as at 31.12.

2,145

2,656

Payables as at 31.12.

8,666

4,447

The value adjustments on receivables due from affiliated companies that are not consolidated, which have been taken into
account in the table above, are explained under [12] and [15].
There were suretyships and guarantees to the amount of € 1,0 million for affiliated companies, which were not consolidated,
in the financial year (previous year: € 0 million). Apart from that, we refer to [20] in the notes.
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(24) Management and supervisory bodies
Management Board
Dipl.-Ing. Jörn Beckmann M. Eng., Cologne
Technical Director

Dr. Alexander Tesche, Sindelfingen
Commercial Director

Dipl.-Ing. Olaf Demuth, Hamburg
Technical Director

Dipl.-Betriebswirt (FH) Ulrich Weinmann,
Weil der Stadt
Commercial Director

Dipl.-Ing. Klaus Pöllath, Stuttgart
Technical Director

Jörg Wellmeyer, Limburg
Commercial Director (as from 1 January 2015)

Dipl.-Ing. Edgar Schömig, Stuttgart
Technical Director

Holders of General Power of Attorney
Marina Humitsch, Spittal an der Drau (Austria)

Mag. Herbert Krutina, Breitenfurt (Austria)

Supervisory Board
Dr. Thomas Birtel, Mülheim/Ruhr
Chairman
Chairman of the Management Board of STRABAG SE,
Villach (Austria)

Ing. Fritz Oberlerchner, Vienna (Austria)
Former Deputy Chairman of the Management Board of
STRABAG SE, Villach (Austria), (retired)

Wolfgang Kreis, Linkenheim*
Deputy Chairman
Chairman of the Joint Works Council of
Ed. Züblin AG

Elke Plaßwilm, Cologne
Former Head of Internal Audit at STRABAG SE, Villach
(Austria), (retired)

Inge Hamm, Berlin*
Regional Manager of the trade union
IG Bauen-Agrar-Umwelt, Baden-Württemberg Region

Dipl.-Kfm. Werner Schneider, Senden
Managing Partner in Schneider & Geiwitz GmbH, Neu-Ulm

Reiner Hauptvogel, Selters*
Chairman of the Works Council, Sub-Division Centre of
Ed. Züblin AG

Hartmut Storbeck, Hamburg*
Chairman of the Works Council, Sub-Division North of
Ed. Züblin AG

Dipl.-Ing. Roland Jurecka, Leonding (Austria)
Former Member of the Management Board of
STRABAG SE, Villach (Austria), (retired)

Klaus Ulrich, Lahnstein*
Branch Secretary of the trade union IG Bauen-Agrar-Umwelt
National Executive Board, Frankfurt/Main

Dr. Peter Krammer, Vienna (Austria)
Member of the Management Board of STRABAG SE,
Villach (Austria)

Dr. Thomas Voigt, Stuttgart*
Sub-Division Manager of the Central Engineering Division of
Ed. Züblin AG

The total emoluments of the members of the Management Board of Ed. Züblin AG, including their remuneration for fulfilling
their responsibilities in subsidiaries, amounted to T € 2,346 (previous year: T € 2,576). For this group of persons, pension
provisions of T € 802 (previous year: T € 839) were available at the end of the reporting year.
Former members of the Management Board and their surviving dependants received T € 1,147 (previous year: T € 1,119).
Pension provisions of T € 15,274 (previous year: T € 16,961) are available for them.
The emoluments of the Supervisory Board totalled T € 48 (previous year: T € 48).

* Employee representatives
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(25) Proposal on the appropriation of profits
In its individual financial statements prepared in accordance with the German Commercial Code, Ed. Züblin AG is reporting
a net profit for 2015 of € 24,064,762.24 (previous year: T € 38,991). Of this figure, € 12,032,381.00 were transferred to other
retained earnings in accordance with § 58 Para. 2 of the German Stock Corporation Law (AktG).

(26) Special occurrences after the closing date
At the beginning of April 2016, Ed. Züblin AG sold its shares (48.44%) in PARK SERVICE HÜFNER GmbH + Co. KG.

(27) Other disclosures
In the 2015 financial year, a total of T € 710 (previous year: T € 657) was recorded in expenses for the auditors Warth &
Klein Grant Thornton AG Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Düsseldorf, for auditing the accounts, T € 7 (previous year: T € 8)
for other confirmation or valuation services and in the previous year T € 3 for other services.
Address of the Group’s parent company:
Ed. Züblin AG
Albstadtweg 3
70567 Stuttgart
Telephone +49 711 7883-0
Telefax
+49 711 7883-390
www.zueblin.de

Stuttgart, 8 April 2016

Beckmann

Demuth

Pöllath

Schömig

Dr. Tesche

Weinmann

Wellmeyer
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by Ed. Züblin AG, Stuttgart – comprising the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the notes to the consolidated financial statements – together with the Group
management report, which is combined with the management report of Ed. Züblin AG for the business year from 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2015. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management
report and Group management report in accordance with IFRSs, as adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements of
German commercial law pursuant to § 315a Para. 1 HGB and the additional provisions of the Articles of Association are the
responsibility of the company’s legal representatives. It is our responsibility to express an opinion, based on our audit, on
the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report and Group management report.
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with § 317 HGB (German Commercial
Code) and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der
Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements materially
affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of operations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework and in the combined management report and Group
management report are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and
legal environment of the Group and expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination
of the audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence supporting
the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and in the combined management report and Group management
report are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit includes assessing the annual
financial statements of those entities included in consolidation, the determination of entities to be included in consolidation,
the accounting and consolidation principles employed and significant estimates made by the company’s legal representatives, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report and Group management report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit has not led to any reservations.
In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statements of Ed. Züblin AG for the business
year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 comply with the IFRSs, as adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to § 315a Para. 1 HGB and the additional provisions of the Articles of Association and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of operations of the Group in accordance
with these requirements. The combined management report and Group management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and as a whole provides a suitable view of the Group’s position and suitably presents the
opportunities and risks of future development.
Düsseldorf, 8 April 2016
Warth & Klein Grant Thornton AG
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Hoffmann
Wirtschaftsprüfer
(German Public Auditor)

Gottschalk
Wirtschaftsprüfer
(German Public Auditor)
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